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Consolidated Financial Statements of AS Virsk-A far 2020
Aegistration number. 40003242737
Address: Kalna iefa 17, Alzkraukle, Aizkraukles pagasts, Alzkrauklas novads, Lafvia, LV-5101

Statement of the Management's Responsibility

Line of business

AS Vir$i-A with its subsidiaries is the largest local fuel trader with 100% Latvian capital thereinafier also referred to as "the Group”). The
Group is engaged in wholesale and retail sale of oil products and retail sale of car goods and groceries through the network of own filling
stations. The Group s share capital amounts to EUR 6 677 880 and consists of 47 6989 shares. Nominal value per share is EUR 140. All
shares are fully paid up.

The Group's activities during the reperting year

In 2020, the Group successfully continued implementing s development sirategy which involved objectives such as a substantial
expansion of lhe network, modernisation of filling stations and providing consistently high quality of produets and services to ifs customers,
and also extending support to Latvian producers by presenting them an opportunity to place their products in stores of AS Virsi-A. During
2020, the Group continued efforts to promote the new type of alternative fuel - compressed natural gas (CNG) by opening two mare CNG
filing locations which helps Latvia lowards achieving the goal of reducing harmful emissions in the transport segment. During the year,
the network of AS Virsi-A consisted of 83 filling stations of which four offered CNG.

Despite the fact tat the total retail market of fuel in Latvia reduced by 3.6% in 2020 in terms of tons sold, the Group was able to increase
its market share by increasing the retail sales of fuel by 0.1% over that of 2019. The result of retail sale of fuel in 2020 was impacted both
by Covid-18 which caused the activity of businesses and individuals o decline and by the excise tax policy in place in ihe Ballic siates. At
the end of 2020, the rate of excise duty for diesel m Latvia was the highest among the Baltic states which impaired Latvia's compelitive
capacity in relation to internalional fugl buyers,

The volume of sirategic investments made in 2020 in AS VirSi-A and related companies was not significantly lower. A new interfor design
concept was developed and implemented, 25 filling stations were modernised and four new filling stations were opened - one in each
Babite and Rezekne and franchise stations in each Kekava and Skrunda. Due 1o targeted investments in the network of filling stations,
revision and expansion of the assoriment of goods, and quick adapiation to the new market conditions during 2020 enabled the Group to
ncrease the base of active customers and retail sales. During the vear. net sales of goods increased by EUR 3.8 million or 16.1% and
reached the highest ever net sales in the Group’s history.

Despite the tact that both the amount of fusl sold by the Group in tons and the turmnover of goods increased during the year, total net sales
of the Group in 2020 decreased by 8.3% which was cavsed by the drop of oil prices in the first six months of the year. However, profit
amounted to EUR 4 187 177 or 17.8% more than in 2019, The Group’s operating profit margin in 2020 was 2.4% (2019: 1.9%). (The
operating profit margin is calculated by dividing net sales with profit for the reporting year).

In 2020, the Group commenced restructuring of the legal structure of Virsi Group by investing related party SIA Virsi nekustarmie ipasumi,
an entity engaged in development and rent of real estate, into SIA Virsi logistika, which proviges fuet logistic services in the netwark from
January 2021, and subsidiary SIA Virsi Renergy was founded fo act as the trader of natural gas and electricity. The reorganisation was
campletad in February 2021. The new organisational structure will enable the Greup to sustain a high standard of corporate governance
and risk management.

In order to provide customers with high quality fuel the largest fuel supplier for the network of filling stations of AS VirSi-A remains SIA
Orlen Latvija. SIA Orlen Latvija is the representative office of the Lithuanian oil processing company Orlen Lieluva and it is responsible for
the sale of oil products in Latvia imported from the eil processing plant in Mazeiki. Grien is the second largest oil processing company in
Central Europe.

In 2017, AS Virgi-A was entered in the register of participants of the Extended Cooperation Programime of the SRS, and in 201% and 2020
the Group was a gold level member of the programme.

Environment protection measures

AS Virdi-A and it subsidiaries fake an integrated approach to prevention and contro! of pollution and are comphant with the envircnmental
requirements set forth in category C and B polluting aciivity permits and laws and regulations. To reduce the enviionmental impact, dusing
2020 the fuel filling tacility was replaced at a single filling station. The new filling facility is equipped with stage I fuel vapour removal
system which enables the Group to reduce the amount of vapour released into the atmosphere.

Seeking to control and reduce its impact on the environment, ground water and rain water monitoring is cartied outin filling stations ona
regular basis, ground water monitoring networks are renovated and local purification facilities are cleaned and reconstructed in filing
stations. In 2020, new leca! purification facilities were built or existing facilities were renovated in two filling stations and the Group's oil
storage facilily, focal purification facilifies were cleaned in 15 stations and the oil storage facility and containers were cleaned in 14 sites.
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Group Management Report

In crder {o controf, manage and optimise resources in 2020 the Group continued implementing L30 56001. During 2020, 25 filling stations
were renovated wilh interior and exiernal lights replaced and mction sensors installed in warehouses and auxiliary premises 1o save power.

AS Virsi-A and its subsidiaries are in full compliance with all environmental protection requirements.

Employees

As the Group continued its rapid growth at the end of 2020 it employed on the average 552 people, which was 6% more than in 2013, In
high recognition of the role employees have in the Group's growith SIA Yirdi-A continued making sizeable investments in staff training,
development, keam building, improving competencies of managers, and improving sales and customer servicing skills. All employees are
soveregd for healih insurance. As always, the Group supported the career growth of its employees by offering te apply for internal vacancies
and continued strengthening and recruiting to its management team.

The driver for service quality and knowledge in the recent years has been Virsu School that has earned recognition from the Lalvian
Association for People Management In responsg 1o the restrictions mtraduced in Latvia in 2020, the Group invested time and resources
to develop ihe digital format of ¥Virsu School te provide stafi with quality remote training.

In TOP Employer 2020, AS Virsi-A was awarded the 1% place in Zemgale region. Also, for the first time in its history, AS Virdi-A made it to
the TOP 50 of the key calegory (top-of-mind) of the best employers of Latvia and landed as number 32 {number 8 in trading category).

Support to national rescue services

The Group's prierity for 2020 was extending support to national rescus services. The growing restrictions and morbidity rates during the
Covid-19 pandeic resulted in a patficularly high pressure on the operation of the national rescue services. In Apiil to May 2020,
employess of the Emergency Medical Service, State Police, Siate Border Guard, State Fire and Rescug Service could receive free hot
drinks in all filling siations of AS Virdi-A.

Financial risk management
The Group is exposed to financial risks including credit risk, ofl price risk, interest rate and currency risk. In order to control significant risks
and mitigate adverse impacts of the financial market the Group's management observes infernal procedures,

Credit risk is controlled by the Group through constant assessment of elient credit history based on credit policies in place. Receivables
are registered by an individval assessment of the customer's credit history and financial indicators within appropriate cradit limits and due
days sat. Trade receivables are carried at recoverable amount. The Group's pariners in cash transactions are local financial institutions
with appropriate credit history.

The Group is expesed to the oil price risk both as it purchases and sells fue! products as the price of fuel products is closely linked to
market fluctuations in oil prices. The risk is miligated as the Group's prices are predominantly set on the basis of the actual fugl purchase
price.

The Group observes a prudent policy for managing liquidily risk and secures access to appropriate amounts of cash and cash eguivalents
o credit resources under bank credit lines to be able fo mest its liabilities as they fall dus.

For the purpases of currency risk management, the Group management monitors the currency structure of assets and liabilities. Due lo
the current structure of the financial assets and liabilities denominated in foteign currencies, the currency risk is not material.

Subsequent svents

From 2020 and subseguent to the year end, the Republic of Lalvia and many countries worldwide had restrictions in place fo limit the
spread of the coronavirus which notably slowed the economic develgpment in the couniry and the world. As it is not possible to predict
how the situation will unfold there is uncertainty with regard to the economic development. The management of the Group constantly
evaluates the siluation. At the date of these consolidated financial statements, the Group's financial ratios for 2021 are consistent with
those planned in the budget for 2021 and the financial position is strong. The Group's management believes the Group will be able to
overcome the emergancy situation with the help of the following measures: finangial monitoting of all units and development and
coordination of a crisis plan, timely planning of purchases of resources, and daily in-depth analysis of receivables fisk. This conclusion is
based on the information avaitable as at the date of these consolidaied financial statements.
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Group Management Repott

Management Report {continued)

In February 2021, the Group's reorganisation was completed. As part of the reerganisation in 2020 and 2021, equity of two subsidiaries,
SIA Virdu nekustamie Tpasumi and SIA Virdi logistika, was coniributed o the Parent Company and & new company was founded, SIA Viri
Renergy.

Further development of the Group

AS Virdi-A will continue implementing its development strategy including expansion of the network of filling stations, investments in the
infrastructure, development of aliemative fuels and ensuring consistently high quality of fuel and goods, and replacement of the visual
image and concept to promote brand recognition with the target audience. The strategy will be made in view of the uncertainty existing in
the local and global markat in relation to the oufbreak of Covid-13 in 2020.

In April 2021, the Group's management aninounced their decision to attract capital and comimence listing shares on Nasdag Riga through
an IPQin the nearest future.

Riga, 14 July 2021
. Y
Janis Viba // linda Prise
Chairman of the Board 1 “Member of the Board
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Consolidated Financial Statements of AS Vird-A for 2020
Registration number: 40003242737
Address: Kalna iela 17, Afekraukle, Aizkraukfes pagasts, Aizkravkles novads, Labwa, LV-5101

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

MNote 2020 2019
EUR EUR
unaudited
Net sales 2 171 430 847 187 021 505
Cost of sales 3 (150 094 592) (166 858 003)
Gross profit 21 336 255 20 153 502
Selling expenses 4 {14 146 229) {14 274 126)
Administrative expenses 5 {1 902 502} {1778 543}
Other operating income 6 188 675 45033
Other operating expenses 7 {800 412) (338 799)
Results from operating activities 4673787 3 818067
Financial revenue 14 792 g 045
Finance expenses 21 (498 565) (260 624)
Profit before tax 4189014 3557 488
Corporate income tax for the reporting year 8 {1837) {3 390)
Profit after corporate incaome tax 4187177 3554098
Profit of the reporting year 4187 177 3554 098
Cther comprehensive income
itams that wili naver he reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation of property and equipment 10 - 3473100
Change in Asset retirement obligation 16,19 {120 474) {167 781)
Other comprehensive revenue {120 474} 8305 319
Total comprehensive income or loss 4066703 11853417
Earnings per share before and after difution 18 87.8 745
EBITDA per share 164.4 154.3

The accompanying notes on pages 12 to 42 are an integral past of these consalidated financial statements.

Riga, 14 July 2621 .
/ ) /

Janis Viba 7/ Linda Prise iCingiea
Chairman of the Board [ Member of the Board v of the Board
E
(Jelep Latz(naviéa
Chief Accountant
7
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Consofidated Financial Statements of AS
Regisiration number: 40003242737

Address: Kaina fefa 17, Aizkraukle, Aizkraukles pagasis, Aizkraunles novads, Latvia, LV-5107

Virgi-A for 2020

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020

ASSETS

Note 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 01.01.2018
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EUR EUR EUR
unaudited unaudited
Intangible assets g 142 534 50120 45 171
Property and equipment 10 51 603 845 48 046 395 34331033
Right-of-use assels 1 2316298 2425396 2840175
Investiment in associate 12 57156 54 556 53053
Loan fo associate 28 303 200 328 000 352 000
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 54 423 033 50 904 467 37621432

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories i3 5442 404 5954 328 4 795721
Trade receivables 14 8 866 654 11 750285 10337 070
Due from related parties 41060 55578 5316
Corporate income tax receivable 24 13582 73972 81 887
Other receivables 145 548 151 871 269 857
Prepaid expenses 110 743 83672 63 606
Accrued income 105 544 62 177 34 845
Cash and cash equivalents 15 3676815 2 954 245 2 875781
TOTAL CURRBENT ASSETS 18 402 550 21 086 229 18 464 783
TOTAL ASSETS 72825583 71990696 56086 215

8
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Consolidatcd Financial Staterments of AS Virsi-A for 2020
Registration number, 46003242737
Address: Kalna fefa 17, Aizkraukle, Alzkraukles pagasts, Aizkraukles novads, Latvia, LY-5101

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020

LIABILITIES
Note 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 01.01.2019
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY EUR EUR EUR
~ B unaudited unaudited
Share capital 6 6677 860 810 560 910560
Hesefves
Leng term invesiment ravaluation reserve 20714 459 21 603 544 14 185 162
Other reserves {4 206 039) 1 558 481 144112
Retained sarnings:
Retained earnings brought forward fram previous years 9 247 089 4524 379 7899813
Profit of the reporting year 4187 177 3554039 4133008
TOTAL EQUITY 36620 546 32551063 27 252 657
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Loans irom credit institutions i7 8833 223 7 B30 269 4092 780
Other loans 18 6 624 790 7380 231 2 478 258
Asset refirement obligation 19 786 922 669 721 500 338
Lease liabilities 20 1607 622 1791314 2172972
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILTIES 17 854 557 17 681 532 § 244 350
Currenl liabilities
Loans from credit instijutions 17 2143 482 1834 550 2371639
Cthet loans 18 i 000 000 940 000 1 000 000
Lease liabilities 20 528 757 483 348 £92 554
Trade and other payables 9693 592 14109 879 12 167 262
Deferred income 4185 5539 12 294
Tax liabilities 24 3405 068 2768 425 2303236
Accrued liabilities 2 1674 386 1615356 1142224
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 18 350 480 21758 100 18 585 208
TOTAL LIABILITIES 36 205 037 38438 632 28 833 559
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHQOLDERS’ EQUITY 72825583 71990695 56086 215
The accompanying notes on pages 12 to 42 are an infegral part of these consclidated linancial statements.
Riga, 14 July 2021 //-'
& ,‘/. /%_J e ’
faCirjevska

Janis Viba ' "/ Linda Prase
Chairman of the Board Member of the Board

bet of the oard_

Jejena Lauripavica
Chief Accolintant
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Consolidated Financial Statements of AS Viréi-A for 2020
Registration number: 43003242737
Addvess: Kaina igla 17, Aizkraukle, Aizkraukles pagasis, Aizkravkies novads, Latvia, LY-5101

Consolidated statement of cash flows

2020 2018

. - EUR EUR
{ash flows from operating activities unaudited
Profit betore tax 4183014 3 557 488
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation of property, squipment and intangible assets 3167 136 3544 135
Result on disposal of property and equipment 252 279 84 243
Imterest and similar expenses 489 559 266 BOT
Income from investment in associate {2 600 {1503}
P_rof_t{ ?sfore adjustment for the impact of changes fo current assets and current 8 105 388 7451170
liabilities
{Increase)fDecrease of receivables 2834135 {1392 200}
{Increase} / Cecrease in inventories 511924 {1 158 807}
Increasei{Dacrease) of accounts payable 1o suppliers, contractars and other creditors {3822 830) 2 889 866
Gross cash flows from operaling activities 7628 557 7850139
Interest paid {231 821) {142 604)
Corporate income fax refunded 58 153 4 525
Net cash flows from operating activities 7 454 889 7 662 060
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of properly, equipment and intangible assets (7 081 700) {8 B67 166)
Income from disposal of fixed and intangible assets 577 864 193 356
Loans repaid 24 BON 24 000
Net cash flows generated from investing activities {6 479 036) (B 449 810}
Cash flows from financing activities
Loans received 3321158 7970310
Hepaymant of loans and leases (3 574 642) (6 306 558)
Dividends paid - {797 538}
Net cash flows from financing activities {253 483} 866 214
Net cash flows for the reporting year 722370 78 464
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of the year 2954 245 2875 781
Cash and cash equivalents af the end of the year 15 3676615 2954245

The accompanying notes on pa 0 @ an integrai part of these consolidated financial statements.

Riga, 14 July 2021 g : / P
5 '/
: w4
i Janis Viba Linda Prise
Chairman of the Board Member of the Board

g

: Vi Cirjevska
er of the Board
/ / //

4;192“ e
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Conselidated Financial Stalements of AS Virdi-A for 2020
Ragistration number: 40003242737
Address: Katna iela 17, &izkraukie, Aizkraukies pagasits, Aizkrauklos novads, Lalvia, LV-§101

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Note Share capital Loengterm  Cther reserves Retained Total
investment garnings shareholders’
revaluation equity
reserve

As at 1 January 2018 {unaudited) 910 560 14 165 162 144 112 12032822 27 252 656
Comgrehensive income
Profit of the reporting period 5 - < 3554 008 4554 088
Other comprefiensive incotne
Asset retirament obligation 16 - {167 780 - - {167 780}
Inereasef{decrease} in the long-term 16
investment revaluation reserve 2 8473100 E . 8473100
Transter due to depreciation of
accumulated revaluation gain 5 {865 938) - 866 938 i
Transaction with owners of the
Group
Contribution via non-interest bearing 16
shareholder loans i ’ Jaises i TR0
Dividends 16 - - - {7 975 380) (7 975 380)
As at 31 December 2019
{unaudited} 910 560 21603 544 1558 481 8478 478 32 551 {63
Comprehensive income
Profit of the reporting period . - - 4 187177 4187177
Other comprehensive income
Asset retirement obligation 16 - {120 474) - - {120 474}
Transter due to depreciation of
accurnulated revaluation gain - {768 611} - 768 611 -
Transaction with owners of the
Group
Share capital ingrease through legal 18
resulructuring
Increase in share capital of
subsiciairies mior to legal 2780 - - - 2780
restructuring
As at 31 December 2020 6 §77 B6D 20714 459 {4 206 038) 13 434 266 3E 820 548

5764 520 2 {5764 520} = -

The accompanying notes on pages 12 to 42 are an integral part of these consolidaied financial statements.

Riga, 14 July 2021

Janis Viba Linda Priise
Chairman of the Board ( /‘ Member of the Board
[ Y
leleng/ aurifaviéa
Chief Accountant
11
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Consolidated Financia! Statements of AS Virdi-A for 2020
Aegistraiion number: 40003242737
Address: Kalna iela 17, Alzkraukle, Aizhraukles pagasts, Aizkraukles novads, Latwa, LV-5101

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Information on the Group’s activities and summary of significant accounting principles

General information on the Group

AS Virdi-A (hereinafter “the Group” or "the Parent Company™) was registered with the Enterprise Register of Latvia on 8 January 1895,
The legal address is Kalna ieka 17, Aizkraukle, Aizkraukles pagasts, Aizkraukles novads. The Group's sharcholders are natural persans,
residents of Latvia. The Group is engaged primarily in retail and whole sales of oil products, and retal sales of goods.

The Group Parent Company manages fhree subsidiaries SIA Virdu nekustarie ipadumi, SIA Viri logisktika (former name SIA AKA} and
SIA Virgi Rerergy. The operating activities of the subsidiaries are related {o those of the Parent Company and represent development and
management of real estate properties, ensuring fuel deliveries to the Group’s filling slations, franchises and wholesale clients. and selling
natural gas and, from June 2021, also electricity.

The Group's consolidated financial statements for 2020 were approved by the decision made by the Board of the Group on 14 July 2021,

Groups legal staructure

AS Virsi-A

Ny
A N

SIA Virsi Renergy SIA Vnrls: Logistika SIA Virsu nelfu‘stamle ipasumi
i Orwnership; 2020 100%, Ownership: 2020 100%,
Ownership: 2020 1006%., 3019 0%
tablished 20072020 2019 0% e
e5 \-/' Invested 15.09.2020 Invested 15.09.2020
i
SIA Qttex SIA ﬁenergy Latvia
Ownership: 2020 merged, Ownersh ip: 2020 100%,
2019 100% 2019 100%
22.02.2021. megged

Shde Gulf Petrol RE
Cwnership: 2020 30%,
7019 30%

S’

Vir§i Group entities were consolidated in joint structure duning 2020. Prior to the legal restructuring of Virsi entities {legal investment date
September 15, 2020}, SIA Virsu nekustamie ipasumi and SiA Virsi Logistika were related parfies 1o AS Virsi — A. Qwnership of 8 parent
companies was the same across all § entities.

First-time adoption of IFRS

In year 2020 Virsi AS had a restructuring that involved a legal change of ownership for several companies previously owned by a group
of the same shareholders. Legally the Group was formed for the first time in year 2020; however, all the entities were under the same
ownership prior io the legal restructuring {entities were invesied in AS Vir3i-A share capital by the shareholders). The consolidated financial
statemants for the year ended 31 December 2020 is the first set of consolidated financial statements of the Group preparedin accordance
with IFRS. The Group did not prepare consclidated financial statements for the previous reporing periods under Latvian GAAP. Given the
common control nature of the legal restructuring, the comparatives for the petiod form 1 January 2018 were prepared as if the Group had
been formed prior to 1 January 2019, Since no consolidated financial statements have been prepared in the past, no reconciliations
between the first IFRS consolidated financial statements and the previous GAAP separate financial statemenis are presented in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consofidated Financial Statements of AS Virsi-A for 2020
Reagistration number: 40003242737
Address: Kaina fela 17, Aizkraukle, Aizkraukles pagasts, Aizkraukles novads, Lafvia, LV-5101

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Summary of accounting principles used

Basis of preparation

The consilodated financial statements were prepared on a going concem basis and in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (hereinafter - [FRS} adopted by the Eurapean Union.

AllInternational Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASS) that are in force during the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are approved for use in the European Union by the European Commission in line with
the applicable endorsement procedure.

The currency wunit used i the consolidated financial statements is Euro {EUR).

The conselidated {inarcial statements cover the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.
The statement of comprehensive income was prepared according to the cost function.

The cash flow statement was prepared using the indirect method.

The consolidated financial statements were prepared on the historical cost basis, sxcept for the following items: buildings are revalued on
a periodic basis.

2020 is the first reporting year on which Group consolidated financial statements are prepared and the year of first-time adoption of IFRS.
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidaled financial statements:
+ |tis assumed thai the Group will continue to operate;
»  (Consistent valuation principles were used with those used in comparable zecounting petiods.
» lfems were valued in accordance with the principle of prudence:
= The consolidated financial statements reflect oniy the profit generated to the balance sheet date;

o allincurred liabilities and current or prior year losses have been taken into consideration even if discovered within the
petiod after the date of the batance sheet and preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

« all amounts of impairment and depreciation have been taken into consideration irrespective of whether the financial
result was a loss or profit;

o Income and expenses incurred during the reporting year have been taken into consideration irrespective of the payment date or
date whert the invoice was issued or received. expenses were matched with revenue for the reporting period;

e Assels and liabilities were valued separately.

+ Al material ites, which would influence the decision-making process of users of the consolidated financial statements, have
been recognised and insignificant items have been combined and their details disclosed in the notes.

+»  Business ransactions are recorded taking into account their economic conients and subsiance, rather than the legal form.

Related parties
Related parties represent both legal entifies and private individuals refated to the Group n accordance with the following rules.
a) Aperson or a close member of that person's family is related o a reporting entity if that person:

i.  hascontrol or joint contral over the reporting entity;
i.  has a significant influence over the reporting enity; or
fi. isamember of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting enity.

b) Anentity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

i.  The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group {which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

il. One entity is an associate of joint venture of the other entity {or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member):

il The entity is conirolled, or jointly controllad by & person identified in {a).

iv. A person identified in {a){i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
ertity (or of a parent of the entity},

v. The entily or any member of the group to which the entity belongs provides management parsonnel services to the entity or the
parent of company of the enity.

Related party transaction — a fransfer of resources, services or chligations between a reporting entity and a related parly, regardless of
whether a price is charged.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Principles of consolidalion

These consolidated financial statements include the financial position and results of operations of the Parent Company and controlled
subsidiaries. & Parent Company conirols an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the
investes and has the ability to affect those relurns through its power over the investee.

Investments in companies that the Group does not control, but where it has the ability to exercise significant influence (Group’s inleresis
are between 20°% and 50%) over operating and financial policies, are accounted for using the equity method. Thesg investments are the
Group's interesis in associates. Associales are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not contro! or joint control,
over the financiai and operating policies. Interests in assoclates is accounted for using the equity method and are recognised initially af
cost, The cost of the nvestment includes transaction costs. The cansolidated financial stafements include the Group's share of the prafit
or loss and other comprehensive income of equity accounted investees, after adjustments to align the accounting pelicies with those of
the Group, from the date that significant influence or jeint control commences until the date thal significant infiuence or joint control ceases.
When the Group's share of losses exceeds its inferast in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying arnount of that inferest including any
long-term investments, is reduced fo zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued, except to the extent that the Group has
an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investee,

Transactions eliminated on consofidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated
during the procsss of consolidation. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated against the
investmant to the extent of the Group's mterest in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but
only 1o the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Segment information

Operating segments are presented in accordance with the classification used in internal reparts to the chiet opetating decision maker. The
main decision maker is a person ar group of persons who allocates resources to the Group's operating segments and evaluates their
activities resulls, The main decision-maker of the Group is the Board.

The Group dees not have separate operating segments and managemeant does not perform analysis at a segment leve!, as it operates
only in Latvia and #is business is the running of gasotine stations of similar naiure. Refer to Note 2 for revenue splii by types of operations.
Al non-finance non-current assets are placed in Latvia. The Group does nol have mayor customers.

New Standards and Interpretations

A number of new standards, amendmenis to slandards and inferpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2020,
and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. The following amanded standards and inferpretations are
not expecied to have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

- Onerous contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract {Amendments to 1AS 37}

- COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to (FRS 18],

- Propertty, Plant and Ecuipment: Proceeds before Infended Use (Amendments to |AS 16},

- Reference lo Conceptual Framework (Amendments ta IFRS 3).

- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current {Amendments to 1AS 1).

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 {Amendmenis fo IFRS 9, IAS 38, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16}
- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and amendments to IFRS 17 insurance Contracts.

Financial inslruments
Afinancial instrument is an agreement that simultaneously results in financial assets of one party and financial liabilities or equity securities
of the other party.

The key financial instruments held by fhe Group are financiat assets such as trade receivables, other receivables, loans and financial
liabilities such as loans, lease liabiliifes, accounts payable o suppliers and coniraciors and other creditors arising directly from its business
activities.

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debl instruments issued are initially recagnised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
Yiabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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Adinancial asset {unless it is a trade receivable without & significant financing component} or financial liability is initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
compaonent i3 intialy measured at the transaction price.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recegnition, Group's financial assets are classified as measured at amortised cost.

A financial asset is measured at amonised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

— it is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

— its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount putstanding.

For the purposes of this assessment. ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined
as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during & particular
period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs {e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. In assessing
whelther the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contraciual ferm that could change the timing o amount of
confractual cash fiows such that it would net meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:

— contingent events thal would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

— terms that may adjus! the contraciual coupon rate, including vaniable-raie features;

— prepayment and extension features; and

= terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amcunt substantially
represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount o premium to its contractual
par amount, a feature that permits or recjuires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contraciual par amount plus
accrued {but unpaid} contractual interest {(which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination} is treated as
consistent with this citterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its business model for managing
financial assets, in which case all affecied financial assefs are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting periad following the change
in the business model,

The Group does not hold debf or equity investments measured at FYOC) or FYTPL. All Company's tinancial assets are classified as
financial assets at amortized costs, these assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, loreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the
rights o receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Group neither fransiers nor retains substantially all of the risks and revsards of ownership and it does
not retain control of the financial asset.

Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash in bank accounts and on hand, cash in transit and shorl-lerm deposits with initial maturity of
up to 3 months.

Financiai liabilities

All Gempany's financial liabilities are classified as measured at amertised cost and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effeclive interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.
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The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contraciual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also
derecogrises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash fiows of the medified liability are substantially different, in which
case a new {inancial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid {including any
nan-cash assels transtered or liabililes assumed) is recognised in profit or loss,

Use of derivatives

in addifion to the above risk management policies, the Group uses derivatives to hedge financtal risks.

Derivatives are financial instruments whose value changes depending on the inferest rate, secwrifies price, foreign exchange rate, price
index or rate, credtt rating or changes in a similar fiexible ratio, and which is impacted by one or several financial risks characteristic of the
underlying financial instrument, and transferred from the Group to other pariies fo the transaction.

The Group uses derivatives such as commaodity and currency futures and other derivatives which are mitially disclosed at cost and at fair
value, Fair value is determined with reference to market prices, Al derivatives are recognized as assets if their fair value is positive and
liabilities if their fair value is negatwe. As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 there were no derivalives outstanding, The Group
has not applied hedge accounting.

Non-financial assets and liabilitios

Intangible asseis

Intangible assets are carried at cost amertized over the useful life of the asset on a straight ling basis. Should any events or changes in
circumstances indicale that the book value of intangible assels is no longer recoverable the respective intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment. An impairment less is recognized when the book value of an intangible asset exceeds ils recoverable amount. Groups
intangible assets mainky cosists of IT softwares and developments with useful life of 3 years.

Property and equipment

{i} Usefu lives

Property and equipment is catried at historical cost except for land and buildings that are recagnized at revalued value, less accumisdated
depreciation and impairment. No depreciation is calculated for land. Depreciation is calculated on a shraight fine basis over the useful life
of the asset:

2020 2015
Buildings and engineering siructures - 20 - 40 years - 20 years
Equipment and machinery -5-20 years -5-10years
Other property and equipment - 2-7 years -2 - Hyears

Depreciation is calculated from the month following the month of pulting the asset into use or involvement of it in operating aclivities.
Depreciation should be calculated separately for each componant of propetty and equipment the cost of which is material in comparison
with the fotal cost of the respective assel. If certain components of an ifem of property and equipment are depreciated on an individual
basis, other components of that same asset ilem are also depreciated on an individual basis. The remainder represents components that
are not matertal individually. Depreciation of the remaining components is calculated using approximation methods o make proper
disclosures of the usetul life.

The change of the depreciation method is considered a change of an accounting estimate which & medium and large company is required
to disclose in the hotes to the consolidated tinancial statements.

From 2020, the managementi reconsiderad depreciation rate far all groups of property and aquipment until 2018 in line with the actual life
cycle of the assets; the straight line rate were adjusted for all groups of assets.

Should any events or changes in circumstances indicate that the bock value of property and eguipment is no longer recoverable the
respective assets are reviewed for impaiment. In the presence of non-recoverability indications and when the carrying amount of an asset
excerds its recoverable amount, the asset or its cash-generating unit is written down o its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
of propenty and equipment is the greater of net sales value and value in use. The value in use is estimated by discounting astimated future
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cash flows at present value using a pre-tax discount rate which reflects the present market forecasts with resped! to the changes in the
value of the asset and risks associated with it. The recoverable amounts of assets that do not generale independent cash flows are
determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belangs. Impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss stalement as cost
of goads sold.

items of property and equipment are derecognized in case of disposal or when future benefits are no longer expected from the use of the
respeciive asset. Any profit or loss arising on derecognition of an #tem of propetly and equipment (calculated as the difference between
net income from disposal and book value} is recognized in the profit and foss statement of the period of de-recognition.

The cost of leasehold improvemenis is capitalized and reflected under properly and equipment.Depreciation of these asseis is calculated
over {he entire period of lsase on a straight line basis.

Construction in progress refleets the costs of building iterns of property and equipment and work in progress and is disclosed at cost. The
cost includes the cost of construction and other direct expenses. Canstruction in progress is not subject to depreciation until the respective
assets are completed and put into operation.

{ii) Fair value of property and equipment
Land, buildings and constructions are measured by the Group using the revaluation model. In case the carrying ameount of items of property
and equipment at the rapoiting date is tower than the valuation in the balance shest, and such impairment is expected to be permanent,
assels are recognized at the lower value. The revaluation result is recognized in the profit and loss statement except if a previously
recognized increase in the value of assets is set off against an impainment loss. In that event, the long term investment revaluation reserve
is decreased by the amount of impairment.

In case the value of assets at the balance sheet dale is higher than the valuation on the balance sheet, the assels are revaluad to the
higher value if the increase in value may be assumed to be other than temporary. The increase of value resulting from revaluation is
recognized under “Long term invesiment revaluation reserve”. If an increase in the value resulfing from revaluation compensates for the
impairment of the same asset which was previously recognized as an expense in the profit and loss statement, then the increase resulting
fram revaluation is recognized as income in the profit and loss statement as incurred. The long tetm investment revaluation reserve is
decreased when the revalued asset is disposed, is no longer utilized, or the increase of value is hd longer reasonable.

The increase included in the lang term investment revaluation reserve under equity is decreased by recognising this decrease m the proiit
and loss statement accordingly: gradually over the entire lifetime of the revalued asset, each reporting period writing down from resetves
an amgunt equal to the difference between the depreciation, calculated based on the revalued value of the asset, and depreciation
calculated based on the cost of the asset.

As at 30 September 2013 certain categories of property and equipment were revalued to fair value. The revaluation was performed for
Land, buildings and engineering siructures (see Note 10).

Leases

IFRS 16 Accounting

Upon adoplion of IFRS 16 in the reporting period the Group recognised righi-of-use assets for real estate property {land, buildings),
vehicles and store equipment leased by the Group in the ordinary course of business,

Inifially, right-of-use assets are measured at the present valus of outstanding lease payments at the date of recegnition. Lease payments
are discounted using the Group's effective financing rate for the specific category of assets,

Subsequent to initial racognition, right-cf-use assets are measured at cost.

Under the cost model, right-of-use assels are measured at cost net of accumufated amortisation and impairment losses. Assets are
amortised from the date of acquisition to the end date of lease.

Subsequent {o initial recagnition, lease liabilities are measured
» by increasing ihe carrying amount to reflect interest under lease liabilities and
* by reducing the carrying amaunt to reflect lease payments mada.

Right-of-use asseis relaling o lzased assets are disclosed in the sfatement of financial position separately from other #sseis and lease
liabilties are disclosed separately from other liabilities.

Inferest expenses on lease liabilities are disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income and other comprehensive income separataly
from amortisation of the right-of-use asset.

IFRS 16 was implemented using the modified retrospective approach rather than the full application appreach with the date of initial
application of IFRS, te., 1 January 2019 and rights of use and assets were recognised only for contracts signed on and afier the above
date. During the reporting period, the Group made use of the practical expedient for short-term leases and leases for which the underlying
assel is of low value,

17

VIRSI IPO Prospectus | 221



Consolidated Financial Statements of AS Virsi-A for 2020
Hegisteation number; 40003242737
Address: Kafna igfa 17, Aizkraukle, Aizkraukles pagasts, Aizkravkles novads, Lafvia, LY-5107
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Investmentis in associates

The Group's interests in equity-accounted investees comprise investments in associates. Associates are those entities in which the Group
has significant influence, but not contrel, over the financial and cperating policies. Such investments are initially recognized at cost, which
includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these individual financial statemenis include the Group's share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of associates on an equity-accounted basis, from the date that significant influence effectively
commences until the date that significant influsnce effectively ceases. When the Group's share ¢f losses exceeds the Group's interest in
the associate, that interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extenf that the Group has
incurred obligations in respect of the associate.

Unrealized gains arising from fransactions with associates are eliminated against the mvestmeant {o the extent Group’s share in the
investes. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the exient that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

Expenses incurred to deliver inventories to their current location and conditicn are recognized in the following way:
- 1aw malerials are recognized at purchase cost in line with the FIFQ method;

- finished goods and work in progress are carried al direct cost of matenals and labour plus production overheads based on the nominal
production capacity of equipment net of borrowing costs,

iet realizable value represents the estirmated sales price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost lo complete and sell the
goods. Net realizable value is reflecied as cost less allowances.

Earning per share

Basic earnings per shave is compuied by dividing profit available for distribution to common sharehelders of the Group by the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted earings per share is determined by adjusting profit
available for distribution to common shareholders of the Group and the weighted average number of ordinary shares oulstanding for the
efiects of all dilutive poleniial ordinary shares, which comprise convertible notes and share options granted to employees. The Group
currently does not have dilutive potential ordinary shares, either from converiible notes or share options granted fo employees.

Employee benefils

Short-term employee benefits, including salaries and social security contributions, bonuses and vacation benefits are included in net
operating expenses on an accrual basis as the services are provided. The Company pays fixed social security contributions to State Social
Fund on behalf of its erployees during the employment period in accordance with local legal requirements and will have no obligations to
pay further contributions relating to employee services in respeci of retired employess.

Deferred Tax Liability on unremitfed earnings

In Latvia legal entities are required to pay income tax on eamed profils in accordance with local legislation on Corporate Income Tax.
Corporata income tax would be paid on distributed profits and deemed profit distributions. Corporate income tax on dividends would be
recagnized in the statement of profit and loss as expense in the reporting period when respective dividends are declared, while, as regards
other deemed prefit items, at the time when expense is incurred in the reporting year.

The Group has decided to use these beneficial tax regimes to reinvest profitin further development of respective subsidiaries, therefore it
does not plan o distribute dividends from subsidiaries in the next & years, The Group conirols the process of dividend distribution and
does not plan to distribute dividends from subsidiaries for year 2021 and after in the foreseeable future: 5 year horizon is considered
appropriate given the Group's planning cycle. Dye fo above mentionad reason, the Group has not recognized deferred tax liabifities

Assets retirement obligations

The naiure of ceriain Group's businesses exposes the Group 10 risks of environmental costs and potential contingent liabilities. The risk
arise from manufacture, storage, transport and sale of preducts that that may be considered to be contaminanits when released into the
environment. Liability may arise also through ths acquisition, ownership or operation of properties or businesses.

Provisions can arise from environmental risks, liigation, restructuring plans or onerous contracts. Environmental provisions are recorded
based on cuirent interpretations of environmental laws and regulations when the cerfain conditions are met.

18

VIRSI IPO Prospectus | 222



Consolidated Financial Statemants of AS Virsi-A for 2020
Regisiration number. 40003242737
Address: Kalna icla 17, Aizkraukle, Alzkraukies pagasts, Aizkraukles novads, Latvia, LV-31(1

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

The Group records the present value of the estimated future costs to settle its legal obligations to abandon, dismantle or otherwise refire
tangible non-current non-inancial assets in the pericd in which the liability is incurred. Asset retirement obligations (further ARQ) are
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position,

As the Group applies revaluation model for properly and equipment, valuation of the property and equipment are kept sufficiently up to
dale such thal the canying ameunt of the asse! does not differ materially from its fair value at the reporling date. The carrying amount of
ARO must be reassessed at each financial reporting date. This includes taking into account new information and appropriateness of the
discounts rate and other various assumptions, e.g inflation rate.

Achange in the provision does not affect the valuation of the asset, because the value of the provision is excluded from the asset valuation.
The change in the provision aflects the difference of revaluation recoegnised in equity between the fixed asset valuation and what would
have been recognised under the cost model. Changes in the provision affect the revaluation surplus or deficit previgusty recognised in
respect of ihat asset. Changes resuliing from the unwinding of the discount are recorded in profit or loss.

A decrease in the provision is recognised in other comprehensive income, except o the exient that it reverses a revaluation deficit
previously recagnised in profit or loss, or when it would result in the depreciated cost of the asset being negative. An increase in the
provision is recognised in profit or loss. except to ihe extent that any credit balance remains in the revaluation surplus in equity.

In case ARO is changed, the Group is assessing possible necessity of revaluation of the agset.

A provision is recognized in the consolidated staiement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or canstructive obligation
a3 a result of & past event, and it is probable that the obligation will result in payment, and the amount of payment can be estimated
reliabiy.

The existence of criteria for recognizing provisions and the amounts of provisions are determined based on estimates. The amount to be
recorded is the best estimate of the cost required lo settle the obligation at the reposting date or ransfer to a third party. The estimate of
the financial impact of the past event requires managerent judgement, which is based on similar events occurred in the past, and where
applicable, the opinion of external experts. Estimates may differ from the actual fuiure amount of the obligation and with respect to the
existence of the obligation.

ARO measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required fo setlle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.

The Group's asset retirament obligation ("ARQ") represants management's best estimate of the present value of costs thal are expected
to be incurred for oil installation decommissioning 1o the extent that Group is obliged to rectify damage already caused. Based on the
current projected retail station life. these costs are not expected to be realised until 6-40 years' time with the average remaining litetime
being 22 years (201%: 22 years).

At the end of year 2020, the Group reviewed the decommissioning reguirements and the assumptions used in the present value calculation
and adjusted he obligation to 788,822 EUR as of 31 December 2020. The update was prepared by management and resulted in a net
increase of 118,201 EUR from the ARO at 31 December 2019 of 669 721 EUR.

As of 31 December 2020, the estimated undiscounted ARO obligation is 753 367 EUR {2018 — 723 959 EURY). In addition lo the
undiscounted cost estimates. the primary assumpiions that affect the present value calculation are the inftation rate and the discount rate.
For the update prepared as of 31 December 2020. the Company used an inflation rate of 2.00% (2018 — 2%) and a discount rate of -
0.19% (2019: 0.32%} in calculating the present value of the obligation. The inflation rate is based on current and projected infiation indices
and the discount rate is based on the 30 years German government bond yield represeniing leng term risk free interest rate. The
assessment is particularly sensitive to the inflation assumption. Should long-term infiation estimate increase 1o 3% from the used 2%
assumption, ARQ provision would increase by 256,060 EUR (2019 - 207 504 EUR). Should long-term inflation estimate decrease to 1%
from the used 2% assumption, ARO provision would decrease by 189,460 EUR (2018 - 155 504 EUR}.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to iransfer a liabilify in an orderly transaction belween markel
participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the most advantagecus market to which the Group has access at
that date. The fair value of liabilities represents the risk of default.

According to the Group's accounting policies and disclosure reguirements fair value should be determined for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair value is classified
into different levels of the fair value higrarchy based on the inputs used in the measurement techniques:

» Level 1: quoted prices {unadiusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

s Level 2: inputs ofher than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable fof the asset of hability, either directly (.e. as prices) or
indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).
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» Level 3: inpuis for the asset or liabilily that are not based on observable markst data {unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liabilily might be categorised in different levels of the fair value hietarchy, the
fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant
to the entire measurement.

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has
oceurred.

Fair values have been determined for measurement and disclosure purposes based on the below methods. Where applicable, further
information abeut the assumptions made iy determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liabilty.

Impairment

(8} Financial assels

Financial assets are classified in the following measurement categories: amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
and fair value through profit or loss. The classification depends on used business model for managing the financial assets and the
contraciual terms of the cash flows, Assets are classified as current assets, except for maturities over 12 months after balance shest date,
which are classified as non-current assets.

Purcheses and sales of financial assets are recognized on the setilement date. Financial assels are derecognized when the righis fo
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all visks and
rewards of ownership.

Amortized cost category consists of Hiquid funds, trade receivables and other financial investments (loan receivables - whete the business
made! is 1o hold the asset to collect the contraciual cash flows which represent only payments of principal and interest, and investment in
associate).

Financial assets recognized at amortized cost are valued using the effective interest method. Assels at fair value through profit or loss
consists of equily investinents. Gains or losses of the equity investments are included in financial income and expenses.

Liquid funds consists of cash and cash equivalents and current investments. Cash and cash equivalenis include cash in hand and bank
and other highly liquid investments with onginal maturities of hree months or less.

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (Further ECLs) for all debt instruments nof held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the confraciual cash llows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effeclive interest rate. The expected cash flows wilt
include cash flows from the sala of collateral held or other credit enhancements thai are integral to the contractual terms. if relevant.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has nof been a significant increasa in credit rigk since iitial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credii losses thaf result from detault events that are possible within the next 12-months (2 12-month
ECL}. For those credit exposures for which there has been a signilicant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit lossas expected over the remaining lite of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default {a lifetime ECL).

Financial assets where the Group calculales ECL are:
» Trade receivables and other receivables

«Lpans to assaciaie
» Cash at bank
Liguid funds
31.12.2020 31.12.2019 61.01.2019
unaudited unaudited
Cash and cash equivalenis 3676615 2 954 245 2875781

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk is the carrying amount of the liguid funds. Mote Finangial risk management sels cul more information
about credit risk. All cash equivalents are on demand deposits with reputable credit inshitutions in Republic of Latvia. These credit
institutions are either invesiment grade or subsidiaries of investment grade credit credit institubions, Therefore impairment for liquid funds
has not been recognized because the amount is assessed as immaterial both due fo on demand nature and the high creditworthiness of
the counterparties.
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Consolidated Financial Slatements of AS Viri-A for 2020
Aegistralton rumber: 40003242737
Addrass: Kalna iela 17, Aizkraukle, Aizkraukles pagasts, Aizkraukles novads, Lafvia, LY-5101

Notes to the consolidated financizal statements

Trade receivables and other receivables

¥1.12.2020 31122019 01.01.201%

unaudited unaudited

Trade receivables § 866 654 11 760285 10 337 H70
Due from related parties 41 080 55570 5916
Other receivables 145 548 151 971 269 957
Accrued income 105 544 62177 34845
Total trade receivables 9 156 806 12020 012 10 647 788

The simplified expected credit loss madel is applied for frade receivables according to IFRS 9. Impairment procass is based on historical
credit loss experience corbined with current conditions and forward-looking macroeconomic analysis. The impairment or credit loss is
recagnized in the consolidated statement of income within other expenses. Due to the nature of short-term trade and other receivables
their carrying amount is expected to be equal to their fair value. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the cafrying amount of the trade
and other receivables. Analysis of trade receivables by age, information about the impairment and credit losses are presenied in Note
Financial risk management.

Other financial investments

31.12.202¢ 31.12.2019 01.01.2018

unaudited unaudited

Loanto Associate 303 200 328 0G0 352 000
Total Other financial investments 303 200 328 000 352 400

The fair value of non-current Other financial invetments is not materially different from the carrying amount which is afso the maximum
exposure to credit risk. No impairment losses have been recognized as there are no significant cradit risks associated with the recevables.
The associates financial pesition is assessed as strong with debt instruments having been amorlised while its property assels are Isased
out o the Group on agreements that fully support the assaciates ability to repay its craditos.

(b} Non- financial assets

Assels that are subject to amortization and deprecialion are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the casrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income to
the extent that the asset's catrying amount exceeds #s recoveratle amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair valug
less costs to sell and value in use. Noen-financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are always tested for impairment, when there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. When the recoverable amount of an asset is less than the cairying amount, an impairment loss is recognized as an expense
immediately and the carrying amount is reduced fo the asset’s recoverable amount. The amounis recoverable from cash generating units’
operating activities are determined based on value in use calculations. Preparation of these estimates requires management to make
assumptions relating to future expectations. The main assumptions used relate to the estimated future operating cash fiows and discount
rates.

Contingent liabilities and asseis

Conlingent liabilities are not recognised in these consolidated financial statements.Contingent liabilities are recognized as liabilities only
when there is reasonable Iikelihood that an outftow of funds will be required. Conlingent assets are recognized in these consolidated
financial statements to the extent that there is reasonable lkelihood that the Group will receive an inflow of economic benefits related to
the transaclion.

Ravenue recognifion

Revenue from contracls with customers is recognized when or as the Group satisfies a performance cbligation by transferring control of
a promised good of service to a customer, The fransfer of control is based mainly on transterring risks and rewards according to the
delivery terms. The group principally satisfies its performance obligations ai a point in time; the amaounts of revenue recognized relating to
performance obligations satisfied over time are not significant. When. or as, a performance obligation is satisfied, the graup recognizes as
revenue the amount of the ransachion price that is allocated to that performance obligation.
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Consofidated Financial Staternents of AS Virsi-A for 2020
Regisiration number, 40603242737
Address: Kalna icla 17, Aizkraukle, Arzkrauldes pagasts, Aizkraulles novads, Latvia, LV-5101

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the group expects to be eniilled in exchange for the promised goods or
services. The transaction pnce is allocated to the performance obligations in the contract based on standalone selling prices of the goods
or services promised. Revenue is prasentad net of indirect sales taxes such as value added tax, penaliies and discounts,

Sale of oil products contains fuel product sales in wholesale and retail stations. Excise taxes included in fhe retail selling price of finished
ol products are included in product sales. The corresponding amount is included in the purchase price of petroleurm praducts and inciuded
in Cost of oil preducts and goods.

Retail sate of goods contains catering and sales of consumer products at Virsi fuel stations besides oil products.

Corporate income tax

Based on the Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of Latvia the tax rate is 20%, the taxation period is one month and the taxable
base, determined by dividing the value of the taxable itern by a factor of 0.8, includes:

e distriputed profit (dividends calculated, payments equivalent to dividends, conditional dividends) and

= conditionally or theoretically distributed profit {non-operating expenses, doubtful debts, excessive interest payments, loans to
related parties, decrease of income or excessive expenses which are incurred by entering into fransactions at prices oiher than
those on the market that should be calculated using the methodology determined by the Cabinel of Ministers, benefits bestowed
by the non-resident upon its staff or Management board and Supervisory Board members regardless of whether the receiving
party is & resident or a non-resident, if they relate to the operation of a permanent esiablishment in Latvia, liquidation quota).

The use of tax losses carried forward from previous periods is limiled: it is possible to utihse these losses to decrease the amaount of fax
calculated on dividenids in the reporting period by no more than 50%. It is possible to carry forward unused tax losses and ulilise them in
the previously described manner anly undil 2022,

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on taxes carried forward losses and any temporary difterences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliies for financial reporting purposes and the armounts used for taxation purposes. Under the initial
recognition exception, deferred tax is not inflially recognized for an asset or liability in transactions & business combination if the
#ransaction, when initially recognized, does not affect profit for financial or tax purposes. Deferred fax liabilities are not recognized for
temporary differences on the initial recognition of goodwill and subsequently for goodwill non-deductible for lax purposes. Deferred taxis
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and is expected to be eflective in
the pariods in which the temporary differences reverse or are used to carry forward.losses. Deferred tax is caloulated at the rate applicable
to retained earnings unii! a decision is taken on profit distribufion. Thus, in Latvia where income tax is payable on distributed profits {such
as dividends), the deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognized using the tax rate applicable to refained samings.

When applicable, deferred tax is recognized at the Group level using the expected tax rate of the fulure dividend. Deferred tax assels and
lizbilities are mutually exclusive excluded only within the same company of the Group and only if cerlain criteria are mel. Deferred tax
assels in respect of temporary differences and tax losses canied foiward are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be ulilized.

The carrying amouni of the deferred tax asset, if any, is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the deferred income tax can be utilized realization of the asset. Future taxable profits
and possible amounts of tax benefils are estimated, on the basis of medium-term financial ferecasts prepared by management and their
extrapolated results. The financial forecast is based on management forecasis that are reliable and reascnabile in the circumstances.

Significant accounting estimates and judgement in applying accounting policies

The preparafion of financial statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires management te make judgements,
estirates and assumptions fhat affect the application of policies and reporied amounts of assels and liabilibes, income and expenses.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, the actual resulls uliimately may
ditfer krorn those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions ta the accounting estimates are recognised in
ihe perfod, in which the estimate is revised it the revision affects only that peried, or in the period of the revision and fufure penods if the
revision affacts both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty:
. Measurement of fair vaiue of Property and Equipment

More detailed desciiption of fair value measurement is disclosed in Nots 1 heading Property and Equipment {ii} Fair value of property and
equipment. Also refer to Note 10,
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Consohdated Financial Stalements of AS Virsi-4 for 2020
Hegistralion number: 40003242737

Address: Kaina fela 17, Alzkraukfe. Aizkraukles pagasts, Aizkraukes novads, Lahvia, EV-5101

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

® Expecied Credit Loss delermination

iMore detailed description of fair value measurement is disclosed in Note 1 heading Fair value measurement. Also refer to Note 28;

. Asset retirerment obligation delermination

More detailed description of fair value measurement is disclosed in Note 1 heading Provisions. Also refer to Note 19;

2. Net sales from other types of operations

2019

By iyps of operating activily 2020 unaudited
Salg of il products 143 103 745 163318 780
Retail sale of other goods 26007 521 22 398 448
_ Other income 2318 581 1303277
TOTAL: 171430 847 187 021505

2019

By geographic market 2020 unaudited
Latvia 170 203 761 186 685 762
Cther 1227 086 325743
TOTAL: 171 430 847 187 121 506

31.12.2018

Contract liabilities under Trade and Other payables 31.12.2020 unaudited
Advances received 233224 187 446
TOTAL: 233 224 187 446

Acerued income recognised is due from retail business partnes for volume discounts in period, as well revenue from marketing actwities.
Revenue will be received during following quarter depending on compensation period contracted.

The Contract liabilities included in Trade and Other payables primarily relates to the advance consideration received from customers for
defiveties of fuel. This will be recognised at revenue when goods are defivered.

No information is pravided about remaining performance obligations as at 31 December 2020 or as at 31 December 2019 that have an
original expected duration of one year or less, as allowed by [FRS 15.

3. Costof sales

2019

2020 unaudited

Cost of ol products and goods 147 901 961 165 577 989
Deopreciation and amortization 87 803 153 263
Personnel expenses 92 282 113579
Other costs related io property 4602 5293
taintenance and repairs 34 048 21227
Transport 411 643 506 220
Other expenises i 562 253 480 452
TOTAL: 150 094 592 166 858 003
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Consofidated Financiaf Statements of AS Virsi-A for 2020
Registration number: 40003242737
Address: Kalna iala 17, Aizkraukle, Aizkraukles pagasts, Aizkraukles novads, Latvia, LV-5101

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

4, Selling expenses

2019
2020 unaudited
Personnel expenses THF3I 796 7 286 807
Depreciation and amortization 2898 053 3232 487
Cther costs related to propery 49 811 44 429
iMaintenance and repairs of infrastructure 1707 233 1512 455
Marketing expenses 586 187 733 449
Transport 511220 474 744
{ther expenses 819 826 989 763
TOTAL: 14 146 229 14 274 126
5. Administrative expenses
2010
2020 unaudited
Personnel expenses 1291 334 1252 489
Depreciation and amertization 181 278 188 385
Cther costs related to propery 13825 16 625
iaintenance and repairs of office 40094 33 891
Transport 75661 61 603
Professional services * 186 572 148 874
Other expenses 103 737 106 676
TOTAL: 1902 502 1778543
* including total remuneration paid to certified auditors:
2018
2020 unaudited
AS KPMG Baltics for audit of consolidated financial statements 45 600
SIA Celoitte Latvia for other expert engagemenis 36 300
SIA Potapovita un Andersone for other expert engagements 9000
AS KPMG Baliics for other expert engagements 7 700 2850
SIA levas Lispinas birojs for audit of consolidated financial statements 21000
SIA lsvas Ligpinas birgjs for other expert engagernents - 2000
TOTAL: 98 600 25 850
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Consofidated Financial Statements of AS Virsi-A for 2020
Ragistrafion number: 40003242737
Address: Kalna iefa 17, Aizkraukle, Aizkraukles pagasts, Aizkraukles novads, Labvia, LV-5101

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

6. Other operating income

2019
2020 unaudited
Recovery of written-off/doubtiul receivables 152 245 16 268
Incomte from an insurance campensation received 13278 20758
Gain on currency exchange flucluations, net 4 407
Qther operating income 27 154 4 600
186 675 461033
7. Other operating expenses
2018
2020 unaudited
Lass from sales of properly and equipment, net, incl: 252 279 G4 243
Aevenue from safes of property and equipment {577 864} {183 356)
Mon-amortised vafue of disposed property and equipment 830 143 287 588
Changes in doubtful debt allowanees 254 744 10 924
Loss or currency exchange Huctuations, net 10838 -
Donations 1000 2 500
Bank charges 18 075 55 304
Other operating expenses 265478 175 828
TOTAL: 800 412 338799
8. Corporate income tax
Corporate income tax recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
Corporate income tax is calculated by the Group according to the laws and regulations of the Republic of Latwia.
2018
2020 unaudited
Current tax 1837 3390
TOTAL: 1837 3380
Recongciliation of effective tax rate
Current corporate income tax expenses or the years ending on 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 is different trom the
theoretical tax amount that the Group wauld incur if profit before tax was taxed at the statulory rate of 20%:
2019
2020 unaudited
Profit before corporate income tax 4189014 3557 488
Theorshcal tax at 20% 837 803 711 498
Expected distribution of retained samings (B35 966) {708 108)
Tax expenses 1837 3390

Al retained profits of the Group for period uniil January 1. 2019, were distributed as dividends. If all retained profits would have been
distributed as dividends at the reporiing date the Group would incure tax liability of 2 532 662 EUR at theoretical tax rate 20%. In relation
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Consofidaled Financial Stalements of AS Virsi-A for 2020
Registration number; 40003242737
Adovess: Kafna fefa {7, Alzkraulkle, Aizkraukies pagasts, Alzkraukles novads, Latvia, LV-5161

Notes to the consaglidated financial statements

1o potential deferred tax liabilites in subsidairies of the Group relating to retained eamings the managemeni assessed thaf such profit
distribulion i not expected in the foreseeable future and thus no deferred 1ax lathlities were recognised.

9. Intangible assets

Concessions, Other intangible Creation of TOTAL
patents, censes, assels  intangible assets
trademarks and

similar rights
Historical cost
1 January 2019 {unaudited) 24 969 232 638 - 57 707
Additions 13 665 47105 E 60 770
Disposal {3 884) {3 842) - {7 726)
31 Dezember 2018 (unaudited} 34 650 276101 - 310751
Additions 35 208 54 371 43 541 173120
Disposal - (360) - (380}
Reclassification 51 501 32 040 {83 541) -
31 Decentber 2020 121 359 362152 - 483 511
Accumulated amortization
1 January 2018 {unaudited} 17 489 195 047 - 212538
Calculated amortization 5783 50038 - 55 821
Accumulated amortization of
disposed assets ) g ] (7 72?1
31 December 2019 (unaudited) 19 368 241243 - 260 631
Calculated amertization 12 831 67 775 . 80 706
Accumulated amorbization of
disposed assets (360) ) (360)
31 December 2020 32319 308 658 4 340 977
Carrying amount
1 January 2019 (unaudited) 7380 37T = 45171
31 December 2019 {unaudited) - 15 262 34 858 - 50120
31 December 2020 89 040 53 494 - 142 534
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Consolidated Financial Stalements of AS Viréi-4 for 2620

Registration number. 40003242737

Address: Kaina lela 17, Aizkraukle, Aizkravkles pagasts, Aizkraukies novads, [atvia, I ¥-5101

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

10. Fixed assets

Land, buildings Leasehold  Equipmantand  Otherproperty  Construclionin - Prepayments TOTAL
and engineering  improvements machinery  and equipment progress far property and
siructures equipment

Historical cost
1 January 2014 (unaudited} 32446102 848 578 5564 472 3194 764 951 119 126120 43441 560
Addtiors 713674 155 P46 470884 1026584 5993474 189 621 8 449 623
Revaluation® 8470160 = . : 8 479 100
Raclassilicaiion 5 HB703 167 644 1041 457 2736 408 (5238017 74 185)
Revalued parion of dispoged proparty . . - . :
and equisment (B4756) (84 7346)
Costol dispessd fined assets {1081 744) (288 968) 477157 {1857 869
31 December 2019 (unaudited) 44470279 1171 860 6 787 845 1980683 1466 518 241556 50118658
Addifons 1635 556 33642 523 244 931 811 3 B4B 500 235 827 6908 580
Reclassi® cation 2 838 196 88 404 856 232 312 039 (3989 179) (225 842)
Revalued portion of disposed propery i - . - « # :
e pond {187 506} 1147 506}
Cost of disposed fixed assels (588 038) {481 675t {328 036) {1387 748)
3{ Pecemnber 2020 47 768 487 13291 906 7 785 646 4 896 417 1 445 337 251690 53441983
Accumulated depreciation and impairmeat
1 January 2018 {unaudited) 4031747 185352 2790331 1823097 : . g8105%7
Depreciat on, dapraciation of the
revalued part' i 574 295 93445 633998 $08 084 2916 762
Accumulated deprecialion ol the 19 154} . . . 19 164}
ravalied portion of disposed proberty
ad equipmeant
Accumulaled depreciation of d:sposeq i1 045 400) 81 700} (437 76 1) [ 545 862)
preperty and equipment
31 December 2019 {unaudited} 4550478 258 797 3268 568 1994 420 10 D72 263
Depreciation, dapraciatien of he
revalued part* 1068 734 120 368 569016 775 46 2533502
Rec assidicalion . . 1870 {1870 -
Accuriulated deorecetion of the 16627 6020
revaluad portion of dsgosed propery
and equipment
Aocumutated depreciation of disposed
property and equipment {63 746) ‘384 847) {313 287) {761 680)
81 Decembrer 2020 5549 438 378163 3454808 2 454 727 s 11338 130
Carrying amount
1 January 2018 {unaudited) 28414 355 £83 618 2774 144 1371 671 951 118 126128 34331 632
31 December 2019 {unaudited) 39919 801 913 063 3519277 1 986 183 1186 515 241565 48046 395
e 42 219 038 914 743 4330837 2 441 630 1445 837 251698 516063845

*On 30 December 2019 tne Group revalued preperly and eguipmenl under calegory Land, buildings and engineer 4g structures 1o fair value. The result
of revaluation {appreciation) was recorded i~ the accounting records of the Group on 30 December 2019. The revatualion was perfermed by cerlified -eal
estale appraiser SIA Arco Real Estae. The valuation was based on the income and cosf appreach. The management believes the fair value al the end
of 2020 is not materially diffarent from tha carrying amound.

The carrying amount of Land. build'ngs and engineening siruciures evaluated al fair value at 37 December 2020 would have been 26 108 158 EUR (2019
22 437 899 EURJ if 2!l calegory had been accounted using the cost methzd,

Al fixed assels under “Land. buildings and engingenng strustures” represent Level 3 lair value hierarchy,

The loflowing tab e shows the valuation jechrigue used in measurirg the lair value of Land, buildings and eng qeering sl-ugtures, 35 well as the significant

unobservable inputs used for 2019;
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Consofigated Financial Sfalaments of AS Yirdl-A for 2020
Registralton rumber: 40003242737

Address: Kalna fefa 17, Aizkraukle, Alzkraukies pagasts, Aizkraukfes novads, Latvia, LV-5101

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Fair value,
EUR Inter-relation between significant
2019 unobservable inputs and fair vaive
Type {unaudited)  Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs measurement
- Discount rate rangng from 13% 10 *8.5%
- Gross revenuz assumplion in yea- one for  Markel value may increase (reduce) if:
fue sales rem EUR &C thowsand lo EJA - Discourt rate reduces (incieases);
381 theusano - Initizl gress revenue from fuel ana siore
- Gross revenue assumption in year one far  sales increases [reduces);
storg sales from EYR 13 thousard lo EUR  -Mainienance cost of filling s:ations reduces
Filling stations 256 thousand lincreasas),
wid - Revenue growth from year 5 or 4 1.0% - - Forecast of changes in revenue increasas
aLipment 35705500  Discounted cash flows 2.0% p.a. (ieduces).
Market value may increase {reducej it
- Discounl f capitalisation rale reduces
- Discount rate 17.5% {increases);
- Capitalisalion rale 8 5% - Rem: increases (reauces):
- Rent 914 EURM2 (lard) to 3.0 EURA - Qceupancy increasas (reduces),
Oil storage fuel) - Mainterance cost of real estate properties
facility / Diszounted cash Hows/ - Occupancy rate 40-85% p.a. reduces {increasgs),
railway capitalisation of lease - Revenue growth from year 2 1.0% - 2.0% - Forecast of changes inravenue ingreases
neiwok 2005000  revenuse pa. {reduees).
Market value may increase (reduce) if;
- Discount rate raduces {increases).
- Rentincreases (redusesh;
- Discount rale “2.0% - Qccuparey nereasas treduces);
- Renl 1.5-2.0 EUR/inz - Maintenance cost of real eslate properies
- Oceupancy rate 75-30% p.a. reduces (increages);
Commercial - Revenue growth from year 3C.5% - 1.8% - Forecast ol changes in revenue increases
buildings 45 300 Discounted cash Pows p.a. {reduces).

11. Movements in right-of-use assets

The right-cf-use assel was recognised according to IFRS 16 Leases.

Leased

machinery property
Historical cost
1 January 2019 {unaudited) 1309 271 1823722 3132993
Additicns 156 773 - 156 773
31 December 2019 {unaudited) 1 466 044 1823722 3285766
Additions 456 345 456 345
Cost of disposed fixed assels (36 943) - (36 048)
31 December 2020 1885 441 1823 722 3705163
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
1 January 2015 {unaudited) 292 818 - 282 818
Charge for the period 336 402 235150 571552
31 December 2019 {unaudited) 625 220 235 150 864 370
Charge for the period 317 698 235 150 552 848
Accumulated depreciation of disposed property and
aquipment {24 358} - {24 353)
31 Degember 2020 922 565 470 300 1 392 865
Balance as at 1 January 2018 (unaudited) 1016 453 1823722 2840175
Balance as at 31 December 2018 (unaudited) 836 824 1588572 2425 3%
Balance as at 31 December 2020 952 876 1353 422 2316298
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Cansalidated Financial Statemants of AS Virdi-4 for 2020
Registration number: 40003242737

Address: Kalna iela 17, Alzhraukls, Aizkraukies pagasts, Aizkraukles novads, Latvia, LV-5101

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

12. Investment in associate

From 1 July 2016 the Group holds & 30% interest in SIA Gulf Petrel RE. The investment in the associated company is carried according

to the equity method.
31.12.2018 01.01.2019
Si12.2020 unaudited unaudited
Ownership interest in the associate 30% 30% 30%
Mon-current assets 1183314 1 251 357 1317 620
Current assets 42 802 44 748 50 041
Non-current liabilittes {998100) {1 076 000} {1152 00Oy
Current liabilities {37 495} {38 253} {33818}
Met assets 180 520 181 852 176 843
Share in Net asset value {30%!} 57 156 54 556 53053
Turnover 113 300 113044 112 B0
Comprehensive income, net 8 666 5010 75814
Group’s share in comprehensive incoma (30%) 2600 1503 2372
Retained profits {30%) 12 496 10953 8620
Investment in asscciate, nominal 42 06D 42 060 42 060
Investment in associate, net 57 156 54 556 53 053
13. Inventories
31122019 M.H.2018
31.12.2020 unaudiied unaudited
Auxiliary materials 104 342 152 182 50 141
Fuel 3136 472 4111 230 3301506
Gther goods 2124 002 1526127 1381285
Prepayments for inventories 77 588 164 788 62 789
TOTAL: 5 442 404 5954 328 4795721

In the reporting pericd, the ne! realisable value of inventories was equal to the carrying amount. No provisions are recognised for

impairment of inventories.

14. Trade receivables

M12.2018 01.01.2019
31.12.2020 unaudited unaudited
Cafrying amount of irade receivables 9377 607 12415011 10984 470
Impairment allowance {510 953) {664 726) {657 400)
TOTAL: 8 865 654 11750 282 10337 070
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Consolidated Financial Statemonts of AS Virsi-A far 2020

Regislration number. 40003242737

Address: Kaina igla 17, Aizkraurle, Aiztraukles pagasts, Aizkraukies novads, Lata, LV-5101

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Overdus days urder

(Fas g ECL rate Receivable Impavment  ECL rate Jeceivabe  Impainment  ECL rale Recemab e Impaiment
e G

Not nasl due 2.1% 8145221 B i45 3.00% 10201 431 0.10% 2008 530 9008
Overdue by 1-30 0.2% 629 853 1260 Q.10% i 503 880 1504 0.10% 1346 569 1347
Overdue by 31-60 0.4% ‘08 424 078 0.40% 185 841 743 C.B0% 119972 720
Cverdue by 61-90 3.3% 38297 1287 1.50% 134778 2022 1.80% 13530 244
Overdug by 91-180 6.6% 2881 1802 2.70% 28 679 774 3.30% 35604 178
Cverdue by “81-360 14.5% 95 338 793 5.70% 22 095 i 260 §.30% 22016 1518
Cuerdue by> 560 100.0% 270 663 370663 100.80% 536 525 538 528 100 00% 448 243 &40 249
Total 9377 807 352156 12 415 011 544 828 10 994 470 452 263
Individual allowance 118797 119 898 185137
Total doubtful deb alivwance S10453 564 726 657 400
Changes in allowances for impairmen of trade raceivables:

Impairment allowance for trade receivables as at 31.12.2018 {unaudited) 538 314

Effect of implementation of IFRS 9 119 086

mpairment allowance for frade receivables as at 01.01.2019 (unaudited} 657 400

Additions 7 980

Dacrease of allowances due to wiite-off of debts {634)

Impairment allowance for trade receivables as at 31.12.2019 {unaudited) 664 726

Additions 104 345

Decrease of allewances due to write-off of debts {258 118)

Impairment allowance for irade receivables as at 31.12.2020 510 953

Group evaluates debtors provision aceording to ECL rate and individual debtors evaluation. In 2020 decrease in doubtiul debts allowance
is refated to wiite off of unrecoverable debts due to liguidation of certain ceunterparties. Additions to povisions are due to resulting
increases ECL rates in 2020 compared to 20439,

15. Cash and cash equivalents
31122015 01.01.2019

31.12.2020 unaudited ungudited

Cash in bank and on hand 3 264 827 2 283 366 1976 535
Money in transit 411788 660 879 899 248
TOTAL: 3676615 2 854 245 2875781

16. Share capital and reserves

Share capital

Share capital of the Group in 2020 is EUR 6 677 860 {2019: EUR 910 560}, comprised of 47 699 shares (2019: 6 504). Mominal value per
share is EUR 140. All shares are fully paid up. Increase in the share capital and number of shares outstanding is described below on lagal
restructuring.

Curing 2020 and 2021, reorganisation was carfied out in AS Virdi-A and its group companies. In 2020, the Group raceived a capital
gontribution i the way of shares of two related parties SIA Virsu nekustamie Tpasumi and SIA Yirsi logistika (former name SIA AKA),
which resulted in the creation of Virsi Group.

The shareholders invesied 100% shares of subsidiaries in Parent as a contribution in kind. The investment was valued by external
valuaters and their valuation results laid the basis for recognising the increase in share capital.
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No dividends were disiributed in the reporting period from retained eamings of previous periods (2019: dividends of EUR 7 975 380 or
1228, 2 EUR of dividends per share},

Earnings per share

The calculation of eamnings per share before and after dilution has been based on the following profit attibutable to ordinary shareholders
and weighted number of ordinary shares outstanding. There are no arrangements for dilution of shares.

2019

2020 unaudited

Profit for the year. aftributable o the owners of the Campany 4187 177 3554998
Weighted average number of shares 47 699 47 699
Earnings per share before and after dilution 87.78 74.51

Due to legal restructuring under common control the number of shares in 2020 increased from 6504 to 47 639, However, since the
financial statements have been prepared in a way that presents the Group having formed prir to 1 January 2019. then efiectively the
contribution In kind of the subsidiaries did not result in increase of economic resources. Therefore, the number of shares cutstanding in
poth periods has been adjusted lo reflect the final number of shares cutstanding to reflect no change in resotrces to the Group.

Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve refates to Land, buildings and engineering structures valuation at fair value.

3122019 01.01.2018
31.12.2020 ynaudited unaudited

Revaluation reserve from Land, buildings and engineering structures revaluation 20 714 459 21603544 14165 162
20714 459 21603544 14165 162

Balance at 01.01.2015 {unaudited) 14 185 162
Changes of revaluation reserves 7608 162

Revafuation of Land, buildings and engineering structures (Note 10} 8473 100

Reclassificaton to retained earnings {Consolidated statement of Changes in Equity} {866 938}
Asset retirement obligation (Nete 19) {167 780}
Balance at 31.12.2018 {unaudited) 21503 544
Changes of ravaluation reseives {768 611}

Reclassiftcalion to refained earnings {Consolidated slatement of Changes in Equity} (768 611)
Asset retirement obfigation (Nete 19) {120 474}
Balance at 31.12.2020 20 714 459,
Other reserves

In 2018 shareholders provided non-interest bearing Ioans to the Group with undsfined repayment terms. The Group assessed the
expected repayment schedule based on its repayment plans discussed with the sharehelders. The Group recorded a contribution of EUR
1414 369 in equity relating to the difference between the nominal and fair value of the loans.

In 2020 the legal siructure of the Group was established. Shareholders have invesied a number of entities through contribution in king
investment in the share capital of the Parent on September 15, 2020, Prior to investment entities have been managed under common
control. Given commen conirol over all of the entiies, it was decided to present these consolidated finaincal statements as if the Group
had been formed prior to { January 2018. When contribution in kind tock place in 2020 the increase in legal share capital was determinad
based on far value of the businesses determined by an independent appraiser. However. the consolidated financial statements of the
Group's subsidiaries wers incorporated in these consolidated financial statements based on accounting principles sef out in the significant
accounting policies. Therefore, upon the legal reorganisation an increase in sharecapital was recorded and a corresponding decrease lo
other reserves in the amount of EUR 5 764 520 was recorded.
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Balance at 01.01.2018 {unaudited) 144112
Contitbution via non-interes! bearing shareholder loans 1414 369
Balance at 31.12.2018 (unaudited} 1 558 481
Changes dug to legal reorganisation (5 764 520}
Balange at 31.12.2020 (4 206 039}

17. Loans from credit institutions
31.12.2019 01.01.2018

Long-tertr 31.12.2020 unaudited unaudited
Loan from a credit institution reaistered in ihe Republic of Latvia 8833223 7 830 269 4 092 780
including:
Long term part of Joans repayable in up fo 5 years 8833223 7 830 265 4 040 266
Long term part of loans repayable after & years until malurily - - 52514
Shoti-term 31.12.2020 31.12.2019 01.01.2018
Loan from a credit institution registered in the Republfic of Latvia 2143 482 1834 550 2371639
TOTAL: 10 976 705 9664 819 6 464 419

In diarch 2020, the Group received 3 loan of ELIR 2.0 million to expand and medernise the network of filling stations, incl. that of CNG
stattons.

In July 2019, the Graup fully refinanced its eredit liabilites tewards a credit institution registered in Latvia and received additional funds
for the expansion and modernisation of the network of filling stations.

Group holds unufiized credit facility at balance sheet dates that is prolonged on annual basis. Facility limit is EUR 2.0 million.
All loans carry interest rates of 3M or B EURIBOR plus an added rate. The added rates range from 1.67% i 1.80%.

The loans are secured by mortgages of underlying real esiate properties (filing stations with all equipment), & commercial pledge, a
financial pledge and guarantees by group companies and shareholders,

Loan covenants:
e According to the contracts. the Group should provide credit insfitutions with their annual repors, pro-forma balance sheets,
income statements, statements of cash flows and insurance policies of mertgaged properties. These covenanis are met,
¢ The DSCR ratio should be at least 1.20, Nat DebVEBITDA should not exceed 2.00. These ratios are complied with.

e Acertain furnover should be ensured in the accounts with the financing credit institution and PGS terminals should be installed.
These covenants are complisd with,

18. Other loans
31.12.201¢ 31.12.2018

Long ferm: 31.12.2020 unaudied unaudited
Interest-free, unsecured ican from the shareholders 6624 790 7390 231 2478 258
TOTAL long-term loans: b 624 780 7390 231 2478 239
_ Shart tarm:

Interest-free, unsecured loan from the shareholders 1000 000 940 000 1000 000
TOTAL cther shor-term loans: 1000 300 940 000 1000 000
TOTAL other loans: 7 624 750 9330 231 3478 259

Nominal value total.
Interesi-free, unsecured foan from the sharcholders 8915531 8855 531 3677 689

Shareholder loans are carried at fair value using the discounted cash flow method with the difference between ihe nominal and fair value
recognised under Other reserves. Finance expenses include inferest expenses on the loan at fair value. Shareholder loans tarm split
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disclosed according to budgeted cash flow and according to concluded loan agreements, and according lo covenants mentioned in the
loan agreement with financial institution.

19. Asset retirement obligation

Balance as at 1 January 2019 {unaudited) —m
Change in Revalualfon reserve from Land, buildings and engineering structures revaluation 167 780
Provision made during the periad 101 481

Change in discount rate B3 747
Change in estimaies {17 458}
Unwinding of discounting i 602
Balance as at 31 December 2019 {unaudited) 68T
Change in Revalualion reserve from Land, buildings and engineering struclures revaluation 120 474
Provision made during the period 31733
Change in discount rate 91 177
Change in estimates {2 438)
Unwinding of discounting {1273)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 T 788822

The Group's accounting policy on Assets refiremant obligation refer to Note 1.

20. Lease liabilities

IFAS 16 Leases was adoped using the madified reirospective approach talher than the full adoption approach.

Lease liabilities arise from right-of-use assets disclosed on the balance sheet under Right-of-use assets (Mote 11).

The present value of fulure lease payments is calculated using the effective interest rate applicable io the specific category of property and
equipment in the reporting period. The average rate is 2.38% pa.

Bafance as at 1 January 2019 (unaudited}

Valve atinihal recognition 2765526
Recogrised medifications in lease contracts 1568 773
Repayment of lease liabiities {693 412}
Recopnised inlerest expenses on lease 45781
Paid interest expenses on lease {10 078
Balance as at 31 December 2019 [unaudited}, including: T 2214658
Non-current lease fabilifies 1791311
Current fease habilities 483348
Balance as at 31 December 2019 {unaudited} 2 274 658
Recognised mod fications in lease contracts 443750
Repayment ¢* lease liabilities {625 368}
Recognised inlerest expenses on lease 44 334
Paid inlerest expenses on lease {11 180}
Balance as at 31 December 2020, including: 2137319
Non-current lease liabilities 1 80V 622
Current lease liabiliies 529 757
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Eneaamant Undiscounted cash
flow
31 December 2019 (unaudited)
Lease fiabilifies, including: 2274654 2449617
Amount payable within one year, i.e. currenl lease liabilities 483 348 523 890
Amount payable within 2- 5 years 1078911 1162 391
Amount pavable in mare than 5 vears 712 400 763 336
31 December 2020
Lease fiabilifres, including: 2137 379 2278454
Amaunt payable within one year, i.e. current lease liabilities 529 757 562 991
Amount payahle within 2- 5 years 1057 533 1125427
Amouni payable in more than 5 years 550 089 585 537
2020 2019
Leases unaudited
Interest expense on lease abilities 44 339 45 781
Expenses relafing to short-term leases 364 180 435 522
397 359 471227
Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows
Total cash cutfiow for leases 2020 851875
Tetal cash outfiow for leases 2018 (unaudited) 700 355
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21. Movements in financing

Laans tram credit Other Tatai

- mnstilutions Imang Lease liabilities
Carrying amount 1 January 2019 (unaudited} 6464 419 3478 259 2765528 12 708 204
Loan principa redaid 14613 137) {1000 000 - (5613 137}
Lease paymenis - - {683 345) {683 345}
Cash lows from financing activities (4613137 {1600 000) (683 345) (6 295 482}
New cans from credit nslitutions 7813537 - . 7813537
New sharehcidei loan {see note 16) Z 7177 843 - 7177 843
New 2ase liatilitiss . - 166 773 156 773
q(t:‘«:;nitré?uhon via non-irierest bear ng shareholder loans {see ) (1444 369 ) (1 414 360)
Interest expenses 132 527 - 10 076 142 603
Financ.2! expenses including unwidirg of discount i B8 498 35705 124 203
Interest paid {132 527} - (10 0786) {142 603)
Total charges in liahilities 3 200 460 4 851 972 (490 B67) 7 561 508
Carrying amount 31 December 2019 (unaudited) § 6684 919 B 330 251 2274659 20263708
Loan principal repaid {2009 274) (940 000 . {2949 274)
Lease payments 3 . {614 209) (614 209)
Cash fows from financing activities {2005 274) {940 000) {614 208 (3 563 483)
New loans irom credit insiilukions 3321160 - - 3321 160
Mew lease habilihes - - 443750 443 750
Interest expanses 220661 - 11160 231 821
Finarc.at expenses including unwiding of discount - 234 559 33179 267 738
Interest paid {220 661} - {11160} {231 821)
Tolal charges in liabiliies 1311 888 {705 441) {137 280} 469 165
Carrying amount 31 December 2023 10 §76 705 7 624790 2137379 20738874

Finance expenses:

2019
i unaudited
Interes expense from Shareholders loan discount unwiding 234 559 88 489
Other financial expenses 6 2817
Interest expenses for hank loans 220 661 i32 527
Interest expenses for lease 44 339 45 781
TOTAL: 499 565 268 624

22. Accrued liabilities

31,12.2020 31122018 01.01.2019

unaudited unaudited

Due to suppliers 1163 461 1161 499 742 442
Due to parsonnel 510935 453856 309782

TOTAL: 1 874 396 1 615 355 1142 224

35

VIRSI IPO Prospectus | 239



Consolidated Finangial Statements of AS Virdi-A for 2020

Registration number: 40003242737

Address: Kaina sela 17, Aizkraukle, Aizkraukles pagasts, Aizkraukles novads, Latvia, LY-5101
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23. Expenses by nature

2018
2020 unaudited
Cost of materials 147 901 981 165 577 868
Employee payroll and benefits 8957 415 8§ 652 B75
Depreciation and amartisation 2167 135 3544135
Propeity and maintenance expenses 1848713 1633 920
Logistics 998 524 1642 567
Markeling 586 187 733 441
Finance income and expenses 484 773 260579
Consultancy 196 572 148 874
Other 3101390 1873047
TOTAL: 167 243 670 183 467 407
24, Tax [fabilities and tax assets
31.12.2019 01.01.2019
b unaudited unaudited
Social security contributions 223884 214 852 183 231
Persanal income tax 93 261 384 348 81673
Excise tax 2563 318 1783280 1518 206
Corporate income tax {13882 (73972) {81 687}
Value added tax 523 648 385631 516 255
Natural resources tax 786 1067 1 508
Real estate tax {2201) 199 242
Company car tax 195 50 1123
Business risk state duty " ) 5
Total tax liabilities: 3405 088 2 760 429 2303236
TOTAL tax receivables: {16 183} {73 972} {81 887)

Tax receivables are represented by Cerporate income tax receivable and Real estate tax receivable. Reasi estale tax receivable is part
of Other assets caption of the balance sheet as at 31 December 2020.

25. Personnel costs and number of staff

iy un auﬁﬁ;g

Remuneration 7232773 6986 731

Compulsory state social security contributions 1724 642 1866 144
Expenses for reporting period include:

Other parsonnel cost ~ 316 490 287762

TOTAL: 9275 908 8 950 637
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Including remuneration fo key management

2018
Bl unaudited

Members of the Board and Council
Ramuneration 344 150 259 648
Compulsory staie social security paymenls 82 548 82 281
TOTAL: 426 698 321929

Average number of employees in the raporing year:

2018
2020 ungudited
wembers of the Council 3 3
embers of the Board 5 5
Cther staff 552 520
TOTAL: 560 528

28. Financial commitments, guarantees or other contingencies

The Group companies are notinvalved in liigation praceadings dealing with claims raised against AS Virsi-A or its subsidiaries. The Group
has raised claims against debtors to recover receivables and there are ongoing litigations. Any recoveries abtained from fligation are
recognised as revenue as received,

There are no significant financial commitments, guarantees or ther contingencies hesides metioned above as at reporting date.

27. Related party transactions

The Group had transactions with related parties during the reporting year. The most significant transactions and amounts are the following:

Balance/amount of transaction

2018 2018
Related party: Description of transaction 2620 unaudited unaudited
Associate
Balances Loan to the associate 303 200 328 000 352 Q00
Balances Right-of-use assets 627 538 733 695 839 851
Balances Lease liabilites 641 079 741 359 839 851
Comprehensive income Interest income 6994 7819 NA
Comnprehensive income Interest payable on the right-of-use asset i2 520 14 307 NA
Companies related through
shareholders
Balances Prepayments or services 41 080 55 579 5918
Comprehensive income Fuelling services (1 822 233) (2 109 208} NA
Comprehensive income Income from agent services 18320 21042 NA
Shareholders
Balances Shareholder loan 7 624 790 833023 3478 258
Comprehensive income Finance expenses {234 559) (88 459) MA

Far management remuneraiton please reler to Note 25.
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28. Fair value of financial assets and [fabilties

Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

The table below analyses the fair values of financial assets and liabilties not measured af fair value, by the level in the fair value hierarchy
info which each fair value measurement is categorised.

Total fair Total carrying

31 December 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 values amount
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
Financial assets - - o -
Loan to Associate - - - 303 200 303 200
Trade receivables - - - B8 866 654 B 866 654
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 3676 615 3676 615
Financial liabilities
Loans from credit instifutions - - 10 645 167 10 645 167 10976 705
Other loans - - 7624 790 7624 790 7624 750
Trade and other payables - . - 8593 592 9583 592

Other financial invetments, irade receivables and cash and cash equivatents have their remaining maturiiies of less than one year and
carry no interest, thus, their fair value is deemed not to materially differ from their carrying amounts,

Total fair  Total carrying

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 values amount
31 December 2018 (unaudited) EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
Financial assets
Loan to Associate - - - 328 000 328 000
Trade receivables - - - 11750285 1750 285
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 2954245 2954 245

Othet tinancial invetments, trade receivables and cash and cash equwvalents have their remaining maturities of less than one year
and carry no interest, thus, their fair value is deemed not to materially differ from their catrying amounts.

Financial liabilities

Loans from credit institutions - - 9361 285 3361285 9664 819
Other loans - E B 330 231 8330231 8330 231
Trade and other payables - - - 14 108 8789 14 109 873

The table below sets out the valuation techniques used to measure Level 3 fair value, as well as the most significant unchservable inputs
for assets and liabilities, where fair value adjustment is applied:
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Type Yaluation methad Significant unobservable dala

Trade receivables Expected creditloss, IFRS & Expected credit loss assumprions desctibed in note 15.

Loan repayment siructure assumed in fine with bubgeted cash flows and

bank loan covenats, Discount rate applied based on weighted average
Other Loans Discounted cash flow, NPV discount rate for non-banking institutions at loan issue period. reported by

Bank of Latvia evaluated against the cost of funds for collateralised

borrowings of the Group.

Lease liabilties calculated according o IFRS 16 rules; discount rales
Lease liabilities Discounted cash flow, IFRS 16 applied according o type of asset rented and available financing rate for

specifisc assets from financial institutions in company.

29. Financial risks management

The Group is exposed i financial risks. Financial risks include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Below is a description of each of
these financial risks and a surmary of the methods used by the Group fo manage these risks. Exposure fo those risks arises in fhe normal
course of the Group’s business.

The Group's financial assets and liabilities, including, trade receivables, inveniories, cash and cash equivalents, leans, trade payables are
exposed to financial risk as tollows:

- Market risk; risk of loss or of adverse change in the finaneial situation resulting, directiy or indiractly, from fluctuations in the level
and in the volafility of market prices of assets, liabiliiies, including interest rate risk and currency risk;

- Credit risk: risk of loss or of adverse change in the financial situation, resuling fram fluciuations in the credit standing of
counterparties and any debtors to which Group is exposed, in the form of counterparty default risk, or market risk concentrations;

- Liquidity risk: rigk that the Group is unable o realise its assets in order o setiie its financial obligations when they fall due.

Market risk

Currency risk and revaluation

The functional and reporting currency of the Group is Euro {EURY}, the national currency of the European Union. The abjective of foreign
exchange risk management in Vird! group is to limit the unceriainty created by changes in foreign exchange rates on the future value of
cash flows and eamings, and in the Group's balance sheet. Generally, this is done by conlracting transactions in Euro or hedging currency
risks in contracted. All transactions In foreign currencies are revalued to Euro in accordance with the reference exchange rate published
by the European Central Bank on the fransaction date. Afllmonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are {ranslated
te Euro In accordance with the reference exchange rate published by the European Central Bank on tha last day of the reporting year.
Ditferences arising on payments in currencies or disclosures of assets and liabilities using exchange rates other than those vsed for initial
baoking of transactions are recognized in the profit and loss statement at net amount.

There are no assets in foreign currencies as at the reporting date.
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed 10 a interest rate risk both in the short- and long-term. A change in interest rales may affect the cost of funds
borrowed by the Group as well as the size of cash flows.

To mitigate this risk, the Group is constantly monitoring market conditions, faking measures to improve the debt structure by reaching an
optimum balance between fixed and vanable imlerest rates, controlling the need for additionat financing.

A reascnably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at 31 December 2020 and 2019 would have incteased (decreased)
profit (loss} before taxes by the amounts for ~/- 103 208 suro (2018 +/- 80 646 euroj . This analysis assumes that all other variables
rernain canstant.

Credit risk

Credit risk is ths risk that the Group may incur financial losses if parties to the transactions fail to fulfil their liabilities under the contracts,
and credil risk is primarily connacied with trade raceivables and investment securities.

Credit risk mainly arising from the potential failure of the counterpariy to meet its confractual payment obligations, and the risk depends
on the creditworthiness of the counterparty as well as the size of the exposure.

38

VIRSI IPO Prospectus | 243



Consolidated Financial Statements of AS Vikdi-A for 2020
Registration nmber: 40003242737
Address: Kaina iela 17, Aizkraukle, Afzkraukies pagasts, Aizkraukles novads, Latvia, LV-5101

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the purposes of credit risk management, the Groug’s management has established a procedure that sales of goods or sefvices against
payments on delivery or completion are made based on client evalvation procedures and cevtain limits are sat on the amaunt of such
sales. Management has developed a credit policy which includes regular control procedures over debtors o ensure entification of
problems on a timely basis.

The objective of credil poficy and risk management is to minimize the losses incurred as a result of a counterparty not fulfifling its
obligations. Limits, mandates and management principles for credit and counterparty risk are covered in the Corporate risk management
policy and separate principle and instruction level documenis,

The amount of rigk is quantified as the expected loss to Group in the svent of a default by the counterparty. Credit risk imfs are set at the
Group leve), designated by different levels of authorization, which are responsible for counterparty risk management within these limits.
When determining the credit lines for sales contracts, counterparties are screened and evaluated vis-a-vis their creditworthiness o decide
whether an open credit line is acceptatle or collateral, for example, a letter of credit, bank guarantee or parent guatantee has o be posted.
In the event that collateral is required credit risk is evaluated based on a financial evaluafion of the party posting the collateral. If appropriate
nterms of the potential credit risk associated with a specific customer, advance payment is raquired before delivery of products of services.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum exposure to cradit risk.

Detailed disclosure and aging analysis provided in Trade receivebles disclosure of the consolidated Financial statement. {refer to Note
15.)

Financial instruments are used by the Group and it is potentially exposed to concentrations of credit risk which consist primarily of cash
equivalents, over-the-counter production contracts and trade receivables. The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks, which are
generally highly rated.

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is defined as financial distress or extracrdinarily high financing costs arising due to a shortage of liquid funds in a situation
where business conditions unexpectedly deteriorate and requive financing. The chjective of fiquidity risk management is to maintain
sullicient liquidity and to ensure that itis available fast enough to avoid unsertainty related to financial distress at all limes. Group's liguidity
is managed centralized and monitored on continuos basis. Target Net debtf EBITDA ratio on consolidated basis is 1.5-2.5 and IFRS 18
unadiusted current ratio above 1.0.

COVID-18 pandemic did not have an effect on the Group's liquid funds and committed unutilized credit facilitfes.
Virsi principal source of liquidity is expected to be cash generated from operations. In addition, the Group seeks to reduce liquidity and
refinancing risks by maintatning a diversified maturity profile in ifs loan poriiolio. {See also Mote 17.)

Ceriain olhsr limits have also been sat to minimize liguidity and refinancing risks.

Cantraclual

31 Becember Carmying [+3-3 €-12 Qver 5
cash flows iy 2 3y ¥ 5Y

2038 amount {undiscentd.} monthg months years

Loans from . N

cred { institulions 10978 705 11463 303 883 401 1280519 2095038 2080373 £54733% 716 €52

Othar loans 7624 790 3915301 395 333 606 667 TR OG0 ¥50 KK 756 000 70 COo 750 000 4 165 531

Trade and other _ T

payables 9585082 9533592 o 593 592

Accrues liabilities 1674 39€ 1674396 1674 386

Totai financial

fiabilties 29 869 483 31646828 12644722 1667186 2845039 2810373 5247325 j466652 750008 4 165 531
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. Contractual

31 December Carrying £-12 Qver 5
2019 {unaudited} amount (u: :15;: ;Lmt:s) uEmenths months i o 0 gl 2 years
:'rg*::j!:;ﬂ’; Gl 4664 819 10 169 349 B4 013 062467 1541250 512908 1480508 2677424 0 b
Offter loans 4230 231 9855 53- 120000 820000  1CO0060  7SD000  7h0000 750400 750000 4045531
Trade and other

payabies 14 109 879 14109679 14109 879

Aecried liabiltiss 1615 355 1415355 - 615385

;::['i:i'::"c"" 33726 284 95750714 16B29247 1782467 2541250 2264999 2238506 4427624 750000 4915531

Commeodity price risk

The comimodity price risks in Virsi is affected by fuel business market prices for crude oil, renewable feedstocks and by introduction of
CING in the market for natural gas and eleckicity. While natural gas and electricity consumption in group by the reporting date remains
relatively low, crued oil price is a significant driver behind furnover and cost of products dynasmics.

Crued oil price is subject to significant fluctuations resulting from a periodic over-supply and supply tightness in various reglonal markels,
coupled with fluctuations in demand globally and in lacal market. Virsi results of operations m any given period are principaliy driven by
the demand for and prices of cil and renewable producis refative to the supply and cost of raw materials. These faclors drive operational
perormance and cash flows in fuel business of Virsi.

In order to balance Virsi dependance on crued oil price globally Group has several means in place — Virsi owns storage facility that helps
1o miligate short term volatiliies; sustainable fuel alternatives are introduced to market and Virsi portfolio {CNG, electricity); the ongioing
develapment of retail stores and catering in fuel stations performed. As a result, proportion of growing operating profits in portfolic driven
by crued oil producis as well as price dependence decrease.

Capitai risk management

The Group's objective when managing capifal is to secure a capital structure that ensures access to capital markets at all imes despite
the business cycle of the industry in which Virsi operaies. Despile the fact that the Group does not have a public credit rating, the Group's
target is to have a capiial struclure equivalent to invesiment grade raling. The capital structure of the Group is reviewed by the Board of
Birectors on a reqular basis. The Group monitors is capital on the basis of leverage ratio, the ratio of interest-bearing net debt to interast-
bearing net debt plus total equity. Interest-hearing net debt is calculated as interest-bearing liabilities Jess hquid funds. Over the cycle, the
Group's leverage ratio is likely fo fluctuate, and itis the Group's objective fo maintain the leverage ratio below 45%.

30. Profit distribution

The Board suggests that prefit for the reporting year be retained undistributed and used for further development. The Sharehelder’
Meating will decide on the distribution of proiit.

31. Subsequent events

From 2020 and subsequent to the year end, the Republic of Latvia and many couniries werldwide had restrictions in place to limit the
spread of the corcnavirus which notably slowed the economic development in the country and the world. As it is not possible to predict
how the situation will unield there is uncertainty with regard to the sconomic development. The management of the Companies constantly
evaluates the situation. At the date of these consolidated financial statements, the Group’s financial ratios for 2021 are consistent with
those planned in the budget for 2021 and the financial positien is strong. The Group's management believes the Group will be able to
overcome the emergency situation with the help of the following measures: linancial monitering of all units and development and
coordination of a crisis plan, timely planning of purchases of resources, and dally in-depth analysis of receivables risk.

This conclusion is based on the information available as at the date of these conselidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Financiaf Statements of AS Virdi-A for 2020
Ragistration number: 40003242737
Address: Kalna iefa 17, Aizkraukle, Aizkraukles pagasts, Alzkraukles novads, Latvia, LY-5101

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Group has been reorganised in current legal structure during 2620, On January 2021 Parent company has invested logistics business in
subsidiary 514 Virsi logistika a bundle of assets and labilities at fair value of EUR 327 460 at the date of investment.

In April 2021, the Group's management announced their decision to atiract capital and commence listing shares on Masdag Riga thiough
an IPG in the nearest fulure,

Other than those deseribed in the previous paragraph, no significant subsequent events have ocourred in the period from the year-end to

the date oi these consolidaled financial statements that would require adjustments to be mads to these consolidated financial statemants
or disclosures added within the consofidated financial statements.

Riga, 14 July 2021 / ... |
A é;?// j ?/
Janis Viba Linda Prase a Cirjevska
Chairman of the Board : AMember of the Board mber of the Board
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KPMG Baltics AS T:+ 371 67038000

“Yesetas isla 7 kpmg.comilv
Riga, L\-1013 kpmg@kpmy.lv
Latvia

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the shareholder of AS Virsi-A

Report an the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statamants

Our Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consclidated financial statemenis of AS Virsi-A ("the
Commpany”) and its subsid ares [together “the Group”] set out on pages 7 to 42 of the
accompanying consolidated Annual Reoort, which comprise:

the consolidated statemenit of { nancial position as at 31 December 2020,

the consolidaled statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,
the consolidated statement of changes in eguity for the yeoar then ended,

the consolidaied stalement of cash flows for the yea- then ended, and

the notes 1o the consolidated financia! statements, which include a summary of
sigmificant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

In our gpinign, the accompanying consohdated financial stater~ents give a true and fair view
of the consoclioated finarcial position of AS VirgkA and its subsidiaries as at
31 December 2020, and of its consclidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Internat onal Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion

In accordance with the ‘Law on Audil Services’ of the Republic of Latvis we conductad our
audit in accordance with Internalional Standards on Auditing adopted in the Republic of Latvia

{ISAs). Our responsibrities under tnose standards are further deseribed i the Auditors’

Responsibiity for the Audit of the Cansofidated Financial Staternents section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standardst ((ESBA Code) and i~dependence recuirements
neiuded in the 'Law on Audit Serv ces’ of the Republic of Latvia that are relevant to our audil
of the consolidated financial statements in the Repubhc of Latvia. We have alse fuiilled our
other professional ethics responsinilities and olyectivity requircrents in accordance with the
IESBA Code and the ‘Law on Audit Services' of t~c Republic of Latvia.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaired is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide

Crher Matter

2020 is the “irst year in which the Group's consolidated financial statements have heen
prepared in accordance with Internalional Finang al Reperting Standards {FRSs) as adoptea
by the European Union. The Group did not prepare consolidated financial statements for the
years prior to the legislation of the Reoublic of Latvia. The comparative information presented
in the consolidated financal statements lor the year ended 31 December 2020 has not been
audited.

KM Baluss L5, 2 Lolvias j2int stoes ommpany snd B meE ke
I of tro KMAG global orgerzal oa ol sndoperdont mambar
lurrs mifilated vath KMRAG Intorrabiona Lutwted, a pevats
Erghsh company hraled by guaianias
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information presented in the consclidated f.nancial statements far the year ended 31
December 2020 has not been audited.

Reporting on Other Information

The Group's managerrent s responsible for the other information. The other mformation
COMPrises:

e [nformation about the Group, as set out on page 3 of Lhe accompanying consolidated
Annual Report,

*® the Management Report, as set out on pages 4 to 6 of the accompanying consolidated
Annual Report,

Cur opinicn on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other informatian
included in the consolideted Annua! Report, ard we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thercor, cxccpt as descrived in tbe Qther Reporting Responsibiities n
Accordance with the Logisfation of the Republic of Latvie Relaled to Other Information
section of our report.

Iy connection with our audit of the consolidated financiac statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and. in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materiglly nconsistert with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in t7e audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, bascd on the work we have performed and in light of the knowledge and understanding
of the Group and its environmenl ubtainea i~ the course of our audit, we concude that tnere
15 @ material misstatement of th s other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing 1o report in this regard.

Other Reporting Responsibilities in Accordance with the Legislation of the Republic of Latvia
Related to Other Information

In addition, in accordance with the 'Law on Audit Services’ of the Republic of | atvia with
respect 1o :he Management Report, our responsibility is to consider whether the
Manggement Report s prepared in accorgance with the requirements of the "Law on the
Apnual Reports and Consolidated A~nual Reports’ of the Republic of Latwia

Based sole v on the work required to be undertaken in the course of our auail, in our opinion,
in all material respects:

=« the information given in the Managemert Report for the financial year for which the
consclidated tinancial statements are prepared is consistert with the conselidated
financial statements: and

* the Managemenl Report has been prepared in accordance with the reguiremenis of
the ‘Law on the Annual Reporis ana Consolidated Annual Reports’ of the Republic
of Latvia

Responsibiities of Management and Thosc Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

ivianagement is responsicle for the preparation of the consclidated financial statements that
give a true ana fair v ew in accerdance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and for
such internal control as management gelermines 1s necessary to enable the preparation of
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consolidated financial statements that are “ree from materisl misstaterment, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidateo financial staterrents, managerment 1s respensib-e for assess.ng
the Group's ability 10 contrue as a go ng corcern, disclosing, as applicable, matters rclated
10 going concern and using the going concerr basis of account ng unless management e ther
intends to iguidate the Group or 10 ceass operatons, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50.

Those charged with goverance are responsible for overseeing the Group's lirancial
reporting process.

Auditors” Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Staternonts

O.r objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whethar the consolidated tirancial
statements as a whole are [ree from material misstatement, whether dae 10 fraug or e-ror,
and to issue an auditors’ roport that inc udes our opinion. Reasonable assurange is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audil conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can anse from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individuaily or in the aggregate, they could
reascenab y be expected to influence the ecaonomic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consa idated financia: statements,

As part of an audit in accordance wilh 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughou the audil. We also.

* Identty and sssess the risks of materal misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due 1o fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
resoonsive 10 those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suff ¢ ent and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a rnaterial misstatermen?
resulting from fraud is higher than lor one resulting from error, as lraud may involve
collusion, forgory, intentiona omissions, misrepresentations, or Lthe overnde of internal
control,

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are sppropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing ar opinion on the effectivenass of tne Group’s nternal conirol.

* Cyaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concerr basis of
accounting and, hased an the sudit evidence obtained, whether a material Lrcertainty
exists related to events or conditions that rmay cast signiticant doubt on the Group's
abilizy 1o continue as a going cancarn. If we conclude tha: a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to dravy attention -r our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidatrea financial statemeants or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modity our
opinion. Qur conc usions are based on the audit ewidence obtained up to the date of cur
audifors’ report. However, fuiure events or condit ons may cause the Sroup 1o cease to
conhinue gs a going corcern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, siructure and content of the consohcated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consclidated financial
staterments represent the Lnderlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
a fair presentation.
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s Obtain sufficient appropriate audit cvidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
ot the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit fingings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audis.

KPMG Baltics AS
Licence Mo, 55

A il 4
A 75 -
P& ,,é,,,_:._,j

Rainers vilarg

Partner pp. KPMG Baitics AS
Latvian Sworn Auditor
Certilicate No. 200

Riga, Latvia

14 July 2021
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